
 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee 
 
Thursday 10 November 2016 at 10.00 am 

 
To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

 
Councillors Tony Damms (Chair), Ian Auckland, Steve Ayris, John Booker, 
Douglas Johnson, George Lindars-Hammond, Pat Midgley, Helen Mirfin-Boukouris, 
Josie Paszek, Ian Saunders and Steve Wilson 
 
Substitute Members 
In accordance with the Constitution, Substitute Members may be provided for the 
above Committee Members as and when required. 
 

  

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee comprises the Chairs and 
Deputy Chairs of the four Scrutiny Committees. Councillor Cate McDonald Chairs 
this Committee. 
 
Remit of the Committee 
 
• Effective use of internal and external resources 
• Performance against Corporate Plan Priorities 
• Risk management 
• Budget monitoring 
• Strategic management and development of the scrutiny programme and process 
• Identifying and co-ordinating cross scrutiny issues 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.  You may not be allowed to see some reports 
because they contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on 
the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Scrutiny 
Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  
Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information 
regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Scrutiny Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the 
Committee may have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked 
to leave.  Any private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the 
meeting please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to 
the meeting room. 
 
If you require any further information about this Scrutiny Committee, please contact  
Diane Owens, Policy and Improvement Officer,  on 0114 27 35065 or email 
diane.owens@sheffield.gov.uk 
. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
10 NOVEMBER 2016 

 
Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements 

 
2. Apologies for Absence 

 
3. Exclusion of Public and Press 
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 

and public 
 

4. Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting 
 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 28th July, 

2016 
 

6. Public Questions and Petitions 
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public 

 
7. How Sheffield City Council Wants to do Business - Ethical 

Procurement 
 Report of the Interim Executive Director, Resources 

 
8. Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2016/17 - As at 31st August, 

2016 (Month 5) 
 Report of the Interim Executive Director, Resources 

 
9. Draft Work Programme 2016/17 
 Report of the Policy and Improvement Officer 

 
10. Issues to Raise from Other Scrutiny Committees 
 Scrutiny Committee Chairs to raise any issues relating to their respective 

Committees 
 

11. Presentation Topics for the January 2017 Council Meeting 
 To select one or two topics to be the subject of presentations at the 

meeting of the Council to be held on 4th January, 2017 
 

12. Date of Next Meeting 
 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on Thursday, 1st 

December, 2016, at 10.00 am, in the Town Hall 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 2

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Audit and 
Standards Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Meeting held 28 July 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Tony Damms (Chair), Steve Ayris, John Booker,  

Douglas Johnson, Pat Midgley, Josie Paszek, Ian Saunders, 
Steve Wilson and Adam Hanrahan (Substitute Member) 
 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ian Auckland and George 
Lindars-Hammond, and Councillor Adam Hanrahan attended the meeting as 
Councillor Auckland’s duly appointed substitute. 

 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 No Members of the Committee made a declaration of interest in the business to be 
considered at the meeting. 

 
4.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 28th January, 17th February 
and 18th May 2016, were approved as correct records. 

 
5.  
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 There were no questions raised or petitions submitted by members of the public. 
 
6.  
 

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2015/16 
 

6.1 James Henderson (Director of Policy, Performance and Communications) and 
Andi Walshaw (Performance and Research Manager) gave a presentation, a copy 
of which had been circulated with the agenda pack, which provided an overall 
summary of Council performance for 2015/16.  

  
6.2 James Henderson commented that the purpose of the presentation was to outline 

the Council’s performance management framework and provide a summary of the 
RAG (Red, Amber, Green) ratings for 2015/16 on the Council’s 157 performance 
indicators, as well as on the key performance questions, to enable Members of the 
Committee to identify areas which they may wish to examine in more detail within 
the respective Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee.  

  
6.3 Andi Walshaw gave the presentation, indicating that 2015/16 had seen the use of a 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.07.2016 

Page 2 of 4 
 

new performance management framework which introduced key performance 
questions for the 5 priorities within the Council’s Corporate Plan.  The five priorities 
related to being an in-touch organisation, having a strong economy, having thriving 
neighbourhoods and communities, promoting better health and wellbeing, and 
tackling inequalities.  The progress on the key performance questions was 
measured by the 157 performance indicators, which had been allocated to the 
appropriate key performance question(s), as well as being informed by other 
actions (e.g. specific projects) which were being undertaken within the Council to 
contribute to the delivery of the Council’s priorities. 

  
6.4 The presentation set out the key performance questions within each of the 5 

priorities, outlined the RAG ratings for the 157 performance indicators in each of 
the quarters in 2015/16 and the trends over the year, and set out the RAG ratings 
in quarter 4 broken down by priority area.  The presentation also provided, for each 
of the 5 priorities, RAG ratings for their performance indicators in each of the 
quarters in 2015/16 and on their key performance questions. 

  
6.5 Andi commented that performance updates were reported on a regular basis to the 

Council’s Executive Management Team (EMT) and EMT would conduct enquiries 
of the relevant services where they deemed this to be necessary.  He added that 
the presentation to the Committee contained only a summary of performance, but 
that further detailed information behind each of the performance indicators was 
available and he would circulate this to each Member of the Committee, and this 
should enable Members to identify specific indicators for more in-depth 
investigation. 

  
6.6 Members made various comments and asked a number of questions, to which 

responses were provided as follows:- 
  
 • In relation to performance on the priority relating to a strong economy, 

information such as economic forecasts would be used to inform the 
assessment of performance, and future assessments of the implications of 
“Brexit” would feed into those assessments in the future. 

  
 • On the question of whether Sheffield’s performance management framework 

allows for comparisons to be made with neighbouring local authorities and 
the core cities’ performance, this was possible due to the inclusion of national 
performance indicators and the separate sharing of more detailed 
performance statistics, for example between the core cities. 

  
 • Although the answers to the key performance questions were subjective, the 

data that was used to form the assessments was objective and offered a 
rounded picture on which to form the judgements on the performance 
questions. 

  
 • In terms of ensuring consistency in sample sets, surveys were not routinely 

undertaken in-house but nationally gathered survey statistics would be used 
within the Council’s performance framework, and the agencies who 
conducted those surveys would be responsible for data collection and control 
samples. 

Page 6



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.07.2016 

Page 3 of 4 
 

  
 • Performance data was no longer collated nationally, other than on a limited 

number of indicators where there were statutory reporting requirements, but 
the Council does share data and liaise with other local authorities in relation 
to performance.  Although individual local authorities may phrase their 
performance questions differently, collaboration is undertaken, for example 
between the core cities, to ensure the same data sits behind the questions. 

  
 • Not all the indicators/measures behind the key performance questions have 

the same weighting, but the indicators/measures do provide a mix of 
throughputs, outputs, outcomes etc to provide a rounded assessment of 
performance. 

  
 • The further detailed information behind each of the performance indicators, 

which was to be circulated to each Member of the Committee, would assist 
Members to identify the key “red” performance issues for the Council. 

  
 • Performance comparisons with the core cities was undertaken and there was 

a reasonable amount of data shared by the core cities to enable the Council 
to spot performance issues and target investigations.  Although the core cities 
were a valuable source of information, it was important to acknowledge the 
particular characteristics of individual core cities which may result in different 
performance outcomes. 

  
 • As regards plans for data collection from the Sheffield City Region Combined 

Authority, the working relationships between the two authorities had been 
established and the performance management framework for the Combined 
Authority, which would clearly have an economic focus, was being 
developed.  The Combined Authority Scrutiny Committee would have a role 
in offering challenge and ensuring accountability of the Combined Authority, 
and it was also envisaged that constituent authorities would have a role to 
play in this too, and work would continue on the development of these 
arrangements.  It was noted that the Economic and Environmental Wellbeing 
Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee intended to establish a task and 
finish group on the topic of the economic landscape, including devolution and 
role of Sheffield City Region. 

  
6.7 RESOLVED: That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) thanks James Henderson and Andi Walshaw for their contribution to the 

meeting; 
  
 (b) notes the information reported and responses to questions; and 
  
 (c) requests that (i) the Performance and Research Manager circulates to all 

Members of the Committee further detailed information behind each of the 
performance indicators and (ii) Members of the Committee refer any concerns on 
particular performance indicators to their Scrutiny and Policy Development 
Committee for possible investigation at a future meeting. 

 

Page 7



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.07.2016 

Page 4 of 4 
 

7.  
 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 
 

7.1 The Committee received a report of the Policy and Improvement Officer containing 
a draft Work Programme for the Committee for 2016/17. 

  
7.2 RESOLVED: That the draft Work Programme for 2016/17 be approved, and the 

Policy and Improvement Officer, in liaison with the Chair, be authorised to schedule 
into the programme the potential topics identified in the report relating to (a) 
procurement policies/supplier relationships and (b) the Customer Experience 
Programme. 

 
8.  
 

DRAFT COMBINED SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 
 

8.1 The Committee received a report of the Policy and Improvement Officer which 
presented the draft Work Programmes of the Scrutiny and Policy Development 
Committees for 2016/17. 

  
8.2 The Chair of the Children, Young People and Family Support Scrutiny and Policy 

Development Committee (Councillor Ian Saunders) reported that, in addition to the 
meeting dates identified in the Committee’s work programme, a special meeting 
was to be held on Wednesday 3rd August 2016 to consider the call-in of the 
decision of the Cabinet relating to primary school places in Ecclesall. 

  
8.3 The Chair of this Committee (Councillor Tony Damms) referred to the capacity 

available to support scrutiny task and finish groups in 2016/17.  He emphasised that 
no more than two groups could operate at the same time and, therefore, co-
ordination of planning and scheduling would be required and the timescales for 
conducting the work adhered to, in the interests of ensuring fairness across the 
Scrutiny Committees.  He added that the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny 
and Policy Development Committee, at its meeting held on 21st July 2016 had 
agreed to establish a task group to look at hate crime and this group would meet 
over a period of two/three months starting in September.  He added that he was 
aware that both the Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care and the 
Economic and Environmental Wellbeing Scrutiny and Policy Development 
Committees were considering setting up task and finish groups. 

  
8.4 RESOLVED: That the Committee notes the draft Work Programmes of the Scrutiny 

and Policy Development Committees for 2016/17, and the position in relation to the 
conduct of task and finish groups. 

 
9.  
 

DEVOLUTION TO SHEFFIELD CITY REGION - UPDATE ON PROGRESS 
 

9.1 RESOLVED: That the Committee notes the contents of the report now submitted 
for information purposes, providing an update on progress on Devolution to 
Sheffield City Region. 

 
10.  
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

10.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on Thursday, 
27th October 2016, at 10.00 am, in the Town Hall. 

Page 8



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Report of: Executive Director Resources  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: How Sheffield City Council would like to do Business (Ethical 

Procurement) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Marianne Betts, Director of Finance and Commercial 

Services  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
Members requested a review of our commissioning cycle specifically with regard to 
the Council’s ability to address the following topics: 

• Tax Compliance 

• Ethical Procurement 

• Grave Misconduct 

• Living Wage  

• Blacklisting 

• Local Economic Impact; and 

• Social Value 
 
The purpose is to enable the Council to ‘conduct business ethically, effectively and 
efficiently for the benefit of Sheffield’ 

 
This paper articulates a series of proposed revisions to protocols, process and tools  
associated with those topics and running across Sheffield City Council (SCC) and its 
supply chain.  In particular, the paper focusses on adopting three key tools, Social 
Value tests, Ethical Code of Conduct for suppliers and revised Tender processes. 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  

Reviewing of existing policy X 

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Community Assembly request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee X 

Report to Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

10 November 2016 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



 

 

 

Other  

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
Provide steer and contribute to the development of the Ethical Procurement 
approach. Consider the summary of proposals, key assumptions and key risks and 
seeks Scrutiny’s feedback and approvals  
___________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
 
Category of Report: OPEN  

Page 10



Page 1 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

How SCC would like to do Business 

(Ethical Procurement) 

Executive Summary 
Members requested a review of our commissioning cycle specifically with regard to the Council’s 

ability to address: 

1. Tax compliance; 

2. [Ethical Procurement]; 

3. Grave Misconduct; 

4. Living Wage; and 

5. Blacklisting; 

 
within the supply chain. After initial CMT and EMT feedback the scope of work was aggregated to 

produce an approach on ‘How SCC would like to do business’ and the further topics of  

6. Local Economic Impact; and 

7. Social Value 

were integrated into the work and the overall banner of ‘Ethical Procurement’ adopted to cover all 

the items listed.  

This paper articulates a series of proposed DRAFT revisions to protocols, process and tools across 

Sheffield City Council (SCC) and its supply chain, to enable the Council to ‘conduct business ethically, 

effectively and efficiently for the benefit of Sheffield’ (the vision).  In particular focusses on adopting 

three key tools, Social Value tests, Ethical Code of Conduct for suppliers and revised Tender 

processes. 

The proposals should enable the following outcomes: 

 

•Drive (SCC’s view of) ethical behaviour as a standard throughout the supply chain

•Enable greater return in Social Value in Sheffield

Ethical

•Increase SCC spend in the local economy / market

•Increase our understanding of the supplier markets

•Stimulate business growth 

•Bring in innovative ideas and thinking from the market

•Accommodate short to mid term change / flexibility into contractual arrangements

•Drive an increase in cashable savings

Effective

•Streamline processes

•Be (increasingly) cohesive in our messaging / engagement with suppliers / market

•Have processes that drive the right outcome (rather than  focus solely on compliance)

Efficient

Page 11



Page 2 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

How are we addressing Ethics specifically in this proposal? 
The ‘How we do business proposals’ cover a broader agenda than Ethics alone, however Ethics is at 

the heart of the proposed changes and runs throughout the proposals as a principle. 

The proposals together achieve the following: 

1. Clearly set out our Ethical principles in the Ethical Code of Conduct  for Suppliers (Appendix 

2) 

2. Embeds the Ethical principles in day to day procurement practice (PQQ and Tender 

documentation includes enhanced Ethical tests (Appendix 3 and 4) 

3. Holds suppliers to account for unethical behaviour through contractual obligation, with the 

ultimate consequence of contract termination.  

4. Increases the potential growth of the Sheffield ‘£’ and demonstrates our value of use of local 

Sheffield suppliers. 

Summary of Draft Proposals 
This report focusses on the proposed measures directly impacting the external supply chain and 

Sheffield in regard to Ethical Procurement, rather than the total programme of activity being 

undertaken by the Council in regard to the wider ‘How SCC would like to do business’ programme. 

Taking each ‘ask’ from Members in turn, please see a summary of the proposed changes below. 

Overall our base position (what’s currently in place) largely concurs with the other Local Authority 

approaches. However the new additions seek to put Sheffield City Council ahead, by engaging with 

suppliers and increasing challenge in the supply chain in a number of areas. The Council is limited by 

EU and UK Law, and instances Central Government policies. 

Ethical Procurement 

What is currently in 

place? 

What’s happening to it?  What’s new/changing? 

Separate policy 

statements: 

  New Ethical Code of 

Conduct for Suppliers 

(ECCS) – Consolidation of 

existing statements 

alongside refreshed ethical 

position statements.  

 

Makes a clear statement of 

intent when engaging the 

market. 

 

To be embedded as part of 

the contract and hold 

suppliers to account against 

the code. 

Employment and Skills 

Charter 

Remains in place and 

embedded in the ECCS 

 

Fair City Charter As above  

British Steel Charter Remains in place as a policy 

and contract requirement in 

Construction Contracts 

 

Page 12



Page 3 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

Tax Compliance 

What is currently in 

place? 

What’s happening to it?  What’s new/changing? 

Self Declaration on Tax 

Compliance per 

supplier within the PQQ 

Remains as is, plus…   Reinforced in ECCS – 

Consolidation. Enables 

termination where breach 

without rectification occurs. 

Grave Misconduct 

What is currently in 

place? 

What’s happening to it?  What’s new/changing? 

Self Declaration 

Misconduct per 

supplier within the PQQ 

and in model contracts 

Remains as is, plus…  Expanded PQQ 

disqualification tests against 

suppliers, parent company, 

group and subsidiaries.( See 

appendix 3&4) 

 

New PQQ disqualification 

test introduced for breach 

of International Human 

Rights. 

Foundation Living Wage  

What is currently in 

place? 

What’s happening to it?  What’s new/changing? 

Tender documentation 

and Contracts require 

suppliers to work 

towards paying FLW 

Remains as is, plus…  Reinforced in (ECCS) – 

Consolidation.  

Blacklisting 

What is currently in 

place? 

What’s happening to it?  What’s new/changing? 

PQQ, Tender 

documentation and 

Contracts allow 

disqualification or 

termination for breach 

if found to blacklist. 

Remains as is, plus…  Reinforced in (ECCS) – 

Consolidation.  

Local Economic Impact 

What is currently in 

place? 

What’s happening to it?  What’s new/changing? 

Nothing consistent. Ad 

hoc tender questions 

inputted as part of the 

Replaced by…  Introduces two mandatory 

new tests to evaluate local 

economic impact of a 

Page 13



Page 4 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

Quality Tests. contract being awarded. 

(see appendix 4)  

   Increase the threshold of 

Works contracts for Tender 

to £150k. (Means quote for 

works below this threshold) 

   Mandate one of three 

Quotes is requested from a 

Sheffield Supplier. 

Social Value 

What is currently in 

place? 

What’s happening to it?  What’s new/changing? 

Apprenticeships 

embedded in the PQQ 

and tender 

documentation. 

Anything additional is 

applied in Ad hoc 

approach, with social 

value embedded by 

individual 

Commissioner requests.  

Apprenticeships remains as 

is, plus… 

 Reinforced in (ECCS) – 

Consolidation.  

 

Mandatory social value 

evaluation criteria for all 

tenders. 

 

 

  

Page 14



Page 5 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

How do we hold suppliers to account? 

 

Figure 1 below, demonstrates that for each aspect of the commissioning cycle we need to take an 

action to ensure suppliers can be held to account fairly and in a sustainable manner. 

If we were to take one action (bold black text) and ignore any other we will create a greater risk of 

challenge from the supply chain in embedding any change. 

Proposals being developed to enable each action to be taken are in the purple text and further detail 

can be found in Appendix 1. 

 

 

  

Page 15



Page 6 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

Why is this positive for Sheffield and suppliers? 

 

Please Table2 below for a summary of potential benefits to Sheffield and suppliers per proposed 

activity. 

Proposal Benefit to Sheffield Benefit to Supplier 

New Ethical Code of Conduct 

for Suppliers (ECCS) 

Driving up Ethical Standards. 

Wearing our heart on our 

sleeve and want to foster best 

practice with suppliers 

Single reference point for 

ethical policies and 

understanding their 

implications 

Expanded PQQ disqualification 

tests against suppliers, parent 

company, group and 

subsidiaries. 

As above  

New PQQ disqualification test 

introduced for breach of 

International Human Rights. 

As above  

Introduces two mandatory 

new tests to evaluate local 

economic impact of a contract 

being awarded. 

Aims to increase the Sheffield 

‘£’ 

Greater opportunity to join SCC 

supply chain for local suppliers 

Increase the threshold of 

Works contracts for Tender to 

£150k. (Means quote for works 

below this threshold) 

Aims to increase the Sheffield 

‘£’ 

Greater opportunity to join SCC 

supply chain for local suppliers 

Mandate one of three Quotes 

is requested from a Sheffield 

Supplier. 

Aims to increase the Sheffield 

‘£’ 

Greater opportunity to join SCC 

supply chain for local suppliers 

Introduce mandatory Social 

Value weighting and menu 

selection of social value test 

appropriate to each tender. 

Greater service benefits for 

Sheffield residents 

 

(Re)Launch Supply2Sheffield 

(previously Buy4Sheffield) 

 Increase access to SCC 

procurers and market 

engagement. Clarity on pipeline 

of opportunities 

Single Annual Pre-Registration 

for suppliers (TBC) 

Services potentially available 

more quickly 

More efficient processes for 

suppliers 

Premier Supplier Scheme   Better cash flow opportunities 

for suppliers 

Table 2: Proposed benefits to Sheffield and SCC suppliers 

Key Assumptions 

1. This paper only considers impact on the Supply Chain (not whether to choose to go to 

market or not). 

2. No protocol or process will be sought shall be retrospectively applied. Though the Council 

shall seek to influence the existing supply chain to adopt the same principles. 

Page 16



Page 7 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

3. Any protocol or process proposed in this document will be subject to a minimum annual 

review (and updated as appropriate). 

4. The proposals shall be applicable to prime and material sub-contractors. 

Employee Considerations 
None. There are no changes to Employee Terms and Conditions. 

Legal Implications 
The proposed policies and following documentation will be required to be amended and/or signed 

off by Legal Services: 

• Amendments to Contract Standing Orders 

• Procurement Templates 

• Model Contract drafting 

There is an increased risk of legal challenge from Suppliers in embedding these new proposals.  

Equality Implications 

None. 

Costs 
Policy Development costs have been absorbed within the SCC budget 16/17 and implementation 

costs shall be minimal. The large majority of work has been picked up as part of business as usual 

activity within Finance & Commercial Services. Anticipated costs for implementation include: 

Activity Cost Estimate 16/17 Notes  

Supply2Sheffield Events £12,000 On-going annual Requirement 

at £20k. Sheffield Chamber of 

Commerce have also offered to 

support/host events. 

Key Risks 

There are a limited set of risks associated with developing this proposal further: 

Risk  

Risk assessment 

Mitigation Impact Probability 

Supplier challenges increase High Low-

Medium 

Clear Communications. Re-

launch Supply2Sheffield 

Supplier costs increase as a direct 

consequence of introducing revised 

contractual terms. 

Medium-

High 

Low-

Medium 

Using existing precedents 

wherever possible. This should 

be a market norm. 

Page 17



Page 8 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

The ‘Business-like Council’ ethos and 

approach remains conceptual only. 

Medium Medium-

High 

Use of SCC tools. AGM / PLTs 

etc. to raise awareness. Train 

key stakeholder groups. 

Crown Commercial Services 

mandates stop or alter proposed 

changes 

Medium Low - 

Medium 

Large majority of proposals fall 

within SCC discretion. The 

exception are the qualification 

tests for suppliers in the PQQ, 

these will need CCS sign off. 

 

 

 

Report Author: Marianne Betts, Director of Finance and Commercial Services (Interim) 

  

Page 18



Page 9 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

Appendix 1: Ethical Code of Conduct for 

Suppliers 

Context: 
The following text is based on SCC’s Fair City Employer Charter and DEFRAs Ethical Code of Conduct 

(amended to reflect SCC’s policy). 

These ethical principles are not normally included in the subject matter of contracts as most are 

governed by law within the EU and, as such, are inherent legal requirements which if breached 

would be grounds for excluding the supplier for non-compliance regardless.   

We are however, proposing inclusion of these terms into contract  to ensure Suppliers are clear of 

the Council’s expectations in regard to ethical standards and to enable SCC to exercise our 

‘Discretion’ as articulated in EU Public Procurement Regulations (2015),  but the terms will not take 

precedence, in any event, over any Legislation or Regulation the Council or its supply chain is bound 

by. 

Please also note that public sector bodies may also work in partnership with suppliers to pursue 

wider ethical issues outside the public procurement process. This must however be done post-award 

and on a voluntary basis as contracts must not set standards that exceed EU law, as this may deter 

bidders from member states and could be challenged as a restriction on free trade. 

 

 

DRAFT Ethical Code of Conduct for Suppliers 
 

Sheffield City Council (SCC) defines its ethical standard for suppliers through its Ethical Code of 

Conduct Principles. The principles outlined below include, but are not limited to, the ethical aspects 

of conducting business, that SCC would expect any member of its supply chain to adhere to. 

 

SCC expects its suppliers to maintain high standards of integrity and professionalism in their business 

dealings, adhering to the laws of the countries where they operate and taking action where 

necessary to minimise negative impacts and potential risks.  

Sheffield is also committed to becoming the fairest city in the country. SCC therefore recognises that 

championing fairness is important for the city and also central to recruiting and retaining the most 

talented individuals and clients and contributing to the best type of economic growth.  

DRAFT Ethical Code of Conduct Principles 
SCC therefore asks its suppliers to abide with the following principles where proportionate and 

directly relevant to the subject matter of the contract. 

1.  Instil a culture of fairness, teamwork, engagement, accountability and enjoyment  

Page 19



Page 10 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

 

No discrimination  

• Practice no discrimination in hiring, compensation, training, promotion, termination or 

retirement either directly or indirectly, in accordance with the Equality Act 2010 (or 

subsequent iteration of the Regulation). For the avoidance of doubt this includes compliance 

with Regulations in relation to backlisting employees. 

 

Disputes procedure  

• Provide clear and accessible processes for resolving disputes with employees. 

2. Ensure that all staff have the opportunity to seek out innovative practices and products and 

contribute to sustainable growth 

3. Work toward paying the living wage, promote fair and flexible contracts of employment, and 

deploy recruitment and employment practices that identify and support talent, value 

diversity and promote aspiration and social mobility  

 

Employment is freely chosen  

• Afford employees the freedom to choose to work and not use forced, bonded or non-

voluntary prison labour.  

 

• Afford employees freedom of association with the right to join an independent trades union 

or other workers’ associations and to carry out reasonable representative functions in the 

workplace.  

 

• Facilitate alternative means of democratic representation where laws restrict freedom of 

association and collective bargaining.  

 

Working hours are not excessive   

• Comply with national and international laws or industry standards on employee working 

hours, whichever affords greater protection.  

 

Living and Minimum wages 

• Work towards paying the Living Wage and provide wages and benefits at rates that meet at 

least national legal standards. 

 

• Provide employees with an easy to read contract of employment clearly explaining wage 

levels. Where employees are unable to read, the contract should be explained to them by a 

union representative or another appropriate third party.  

 

• Wages should be in cash and not in kind (e.g. goods, vouchers) with no deductions made 

unless permitted under national law or agreed by the employee, without duress.  

 

Child labour is eliminated  

• Support the elimination of child labour. 

 

Page 20



Page 11 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

• Provide for any children found to be performing child labour to attend and remain in quality 

education until no longer a child. 

 

• Ensure no children and young persons are employed at night or in hazardous conditions, as 

defined by the International Labour Organisation.  

4.  Commit to the delivery of excellent working conditions, high ethical standards, positive health 

and wellbeing, and training, development and reward opportunities for all  

 

Working conditions are safe  

• Operate appropriate health and safety policies and procedures overseen by a senior 

manager responsible for compliance and monitoring and ensuring employees have the 

necessary training and health and safety equipment.  

• Provide comfortable and hygienic working conditions with clean toilets and water suitable 

for drinking and washing. Where worker housing is provided it should meet the same 

standards for health and safety as the workplace.  

 

Good health is promoted  

• Invest in measures for tackling ill health as healthy employees experience a better quality of 

life and tend to be more productive.  

Training is provided  

• Raise employees’ skills through training and access to professional development as befits 

their role to improve quality and secure greater value for money. 

 

Privacy 

• Respect privacy of the individual (whether a customer or employee) and handle personalised 

data appropriately. 

5.  Acting with integrity and transparency  

   

Dignity and Respect 

• Treating customers and employees with dignity and respect. 

Transparency 

There is a strong public interest in public procurements to ensure that:  

• Procurement processes are conducted in an open and honest way;  

• There is transparency in the spending of public money;  

• Suppliers have systems in place to ensure high standards of propriety which make sure 

public money is used for the purpose it is intended.  

• Suppliers are tax compliant. 

  

Page 21



Page 12 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

Appendix 2: Social Value in Tenders 

Sheffield City Council has been reviewing how it can be more effective regarding the benefits of 

Social Value and how this can increase value for money obtained in conjunction with the purchase 

and delivery of services.  

    

As a result of changes to legislation within our Pre-Qualification Questions and Contractor Suitability 

questions we already ask about Social, Economic and Environmental questions.  We now need to 

consider what if any questions we can incorporate and effectively score as part of the method 

statement element.   

 

Commissioning and procuring for social value can help join up all the strategic aims of a public body. 

As a result of this a series of ‘Social Value’ type questions have been directly linked back to Sheffield 

City Council, Our Plan 2015 – 2018. 

 

The reason for the above is that any social requirement should reflect the aims and objectives of the 

Council.  In addition any social requirements should be drafted in the specification and form part of 

the contract.  In this context they can only be used if and where they are meaningful to the 

goods/services/works being commissioned.  In addition we need to be mindful that any requirement 

must not be defined in ways that discriminate against any bidders across the EU member states.   

 

The questions will fall under one of the 5 Outcomes within the Corporate Plan which are: 

 

Overall Outcome/Priority 

 

What it looks and feels like 

An in-touch organisation 

To listen and be responsive, so services are 

designed to meet the increasingly diverse needs 

of individuals in Sheffield 

 

Strong Economy 

To achieve our economic potential, be well-

connected, with skilled individuals and growing 

businesses, playing a distinctive role in the global 

economy 

 

 

Thriving neighbourhoods and communities 

For people to have a good quality of life and feel 

proud of where they live, with access to great 

schools and local amenities 

 

Better health and wellbeing 

To promote good health, prevent and tackle ill-

health by providing early help, earlier in life; 

particularly for those at risk of illness or dying 

early 

 

Tackling inequalities 

To make it easier to overcome obstacles by 

investing in the most deprived communities and 

supporting individuals to help themselves and 

achieve their full potential 

 

  

Page 22



Page 13 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

Under the above headings there are additional outputs which we want to achieve which will form 

the basis of the overall outcome.  It is proposed that these outputs will form the basis of the social 

value questions.     

 

The element(s) of the plan which you can and want to incorporate will be reflected in the type of 

goods, works or services being commissioned.  As a result a menu of options has been provided, of 

which each procurement will have to include an appropriate series.  Commissioners and 

Procurement Professionals will need to use their knowledge regarding which will apply.   

 

Social Value Menu Questions 

 

 

Overall Outcome/Priority 

 

Questions 

An in-touch organisation 

How will you respond to customer feedback and use this 

information to improve and change your service? 

How will you deal with customer/service user complaints? 

How will you feedback/inform SCC of proposals to improve 

the service if this had an impact on the service specification?  

Strong Economy 

How will you support and provide apprenticeship and 

volunteer opportunities? 

How will you support/encourage a buy local policy? 

How will you support individuals ‘furthest from employment’ 

in accessing relevant training and job opportunities?    

 

 

Thriving neighbourhoods and 

communities 

How will you support and provide a positive influence within 

the community to encourage/overcome ….   

How will you encourage the community to develop and 

promote local amenities? 

Better health and wellbeing 

How will you develop appropriate safeguarding procedures 

for Children and Adults? 

How will you ensure individuals and service users within the 

service are able to access the right care and support they may 

require? 

How will you introduce and support people to use the ‘Five 

Ways to Wellbeing’ in order to reduce isolation and 

loneliness?     

Tackling inequalities 

How will you work with service users and the community to 

increase cohesion and address discrimination in the 

community? 

Can you describe the barriers and obstacles individuals face 

when seeking meaningful and lasting employment and how 

you will help them overcome these?  

 

  

Page 23



Page 14 of 14 

Scrutiny Report 10.11.2016 

 

Appendix 3: Ethical Evaluation(DRAFT) 

Under Contract Standing Orders and the EU Procurement Regulations, when tendering SCC are 

required to be open, fair and transparent. This includes stating an evaluation criteria for deselection 

and selection of bidders at the outset of approaching the market. 

PQQ: 

We propose adding a self-declaration of any breach of International Human Rights Law (including 

prosecution and conviction), any rectification and the ability for SCC to deselect on the basis that the 

supplier has not ‘self-cleansed’ (should they have been convicted). This is aligned to our existing PQQ 

documentation, where bidders have to self-declare any conviction in a UK Court of Law. 

We also propose expanding the above criteria to apply to the supplier’s parent company, group or 

subsidiaries. Any deselection of a bidder on the basis of their parent, group or subsidiaries will have 

to be agreed with SCC Legal, as all our procurement decisions are required to be related to the 

service being contracted for. 

TENDER: 

The tender evaluation criteria are a key lynch pin to enabling SCC to effectively meet its strategic 

outcomes. As a minimum this need to be on the basis of a best quality price ratio (BQPR). However 

this may now also include a single assessment criterion of ‘lowest price’. 

SCC currently has two standard evaluation criteria of PRICE and QUALITY. These can be weighted 

relevant to each procurement and though no policy states weighting values, common practice would 

be to have at least 30% weighted for PRICE. 

The new proposal is to have 4 minimum evaluation criteria with a minimum or maximum weighting 

and set question where specified in the table below: 

Criteria  Weighting (of a total 

100%) 

Set Question(s) 

Min Max 

PRICE 30%  n/a – selected by Client and Procurement Professional 

QUALITY 10%  n/a – selected by Client and Procurement Professional 

SOCIAL VALUE 10%  n/a – selected by Client and Procurement Professional 

LOCAL 

ECONOMIC 

IMPACT 

5% 5% 1.Number of employees providing the contracted services 

who live or work in Sheffield as a percentage % of the total 

number of company employees. 

2.% of the £Total Contract Value delivered through 

businesses based in Sheffield (include Prime and 

subcontractors) 

The intention is the above is mandatory and Procurement Officers would have to articulate why any 

aspect of the above would not apply in any Procurement Strategy. 

Page 24



 
 

 
Report of: Eugene Walker, Executive Director of Resources  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2016/17 – As at 31st 

August  2016 
  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Dave Phillips, Head of Strategic Finance   
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
This report provides the month 5 monitoring statement on the City Council’s 
Revenue and Capital Budget for 2016/17. The information presented in this report 
has been requested by the Committee to enable it to scrutinise the Council’s 
financial position at the end of month 5 2016/17. 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  
Reviewing of existing policy  
Informing the development of new policy  
Statutory consultation  
Performance / budget monitoring report √ 
Cabinet request for scrutiny  
Full Council request for scrutiny  
Community Assembly request for scrutiny  
Call-in of Cabinet decision   
Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee  
Other  

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
The Committee is asked to note the updated information and management actions 
provided by this report on the 2016/17 Revenue Budget position.  
   
___________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
None.    
 
Category of Report: OPEN   
 

Report to Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Committee 

10 November 2016  

Agenda Item 8

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

REVENUE BUDGET & CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING  
AS AT 31st AUGUST 2016 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. This report provides the Month 5 monitoring statement on the City Council’s 

Revenue Budget and Capital Programme for August 2016. The first section 

covers Revenue Budget Monitoring, and the Capital Programmes are reported 

from paragraph 18.  

 
REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 
 

Summary 

2. For the purpose of this report, we have presented the Council’s financial 

position in two elements, namely the underlying position on the services 

commissioned/provided by the Council, and the position on services that are 

commissioned and funded jointly with the health service. This is on the basis 

that the approach to achieving a balanced outturn for 2016/17 will require 

parallel strategies.  

 

3. The latest monitoring position at month 5 for the services 

commissioned/provided by the Council shows the potential for a forecast 

overspend of £5.3m to the year end. It should be stressed that this is the 

forecast position before any additional mitigating savings are found, and that an 

ongoing process to identify mitigating savings is taking place.  It is therefore 

considered to be the worst case scenario and does not represent an overspend 

currently incurred.  The position is summarised in the table below: 

 

 

 

Portfolio FY Variance:

£000s

CYPF                          5,019

COMMUNITIES                   3,239

PLACE (89)

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 314

RESOURCES                     145

CORPORATE                     (3,379)

GRAND TOTAL 5,250

Page 103Page 27



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

4. In terms of the month 5 overall forecast position of £5.3m overspend, the key 

reasons are: 

· Children, Young People and Families (CYPF) based on trends to date are 

forecasting to overspend by £5.0m. Placements are reporting a £3.0m 

overspend; this reflects the full year impact on the current number of 

placements and the costs for the remainder of the year, Fieldwork Services 

forecast overspend of £1.0m resulting from pressures on social workers as 

a result of increased number of caseloads. Additional pressures within the 

service include delayed savings of £663k on Short Break and Direct 

Payments and £534k on integrated residential and disability services with 

health. 

· Communities based on trends to date are forecasting an overspend of 

£3.2m, due primarily to demand pressures in Care and Support relating to 

Learning Disability Services and Long Term Support. 

· Policy, Performance and Communications are forecasting an overspend 

of £314k due to lower than anticipated advertising income as a result of 

contract delays.   

· Resources are forecasting an overspend of £145k due mainly to the 

additional employee costs of £262k as a result of the Customer 

Engagement Programme being unachievable in this financial year and 

£297k of additional pressure within Transport and Facilities Management 

arising from additional costs on Burngreave New Deal for Communities 

Property and reduced income to support the Voluntary Registration of Land 

project.  These overspends are partly offset by £231k reduction in spending 

within Central Costs due mainly to lower than anticipated former employee 

pensions costs and £206k on Commercial Services due to confirmation of 

all the early payments discounts and project savings. 

· Corporate are showing a forecast underspend of £3.4m due predominantly 

to an anticipated £2.7m pressure relating to the Independent Living Fund 

not materialising in 2016/17, an increase in cash balances available for 

investment, and reduced borrowing costs.. 

 

5. In parallel to the above position, the Council faces a series of significant 

challenges in delivering savings in conjunction with the health care system. 

Since the 2016/17 revenue budget was set, various cost pressures and risks to 

funding levels have emerged. These challenges are as follows. 

Page 104Page 28



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

· Children, Young People and Families (CYPF) are showing a forecast 

overspend of £750k as a result of not yet securing agreement to joint 

contributions with the CCG for Children’s Services. 

· Communities are showing a forecast overspend of £4.0m, due mainly to an 

emerging overspend against Commissioned Mental Health Services of 

£3.5m and £500k of pressures arising from CCG activity in the Learning 

Disability Service, as the profile of demand has shifted to costs funded by 

SCC and not the NHS.  A more integrated approach is being urgently 

explored.  

· Corporate are showing a forecast overspend of £5.8m, which is due to an 

anticipated shortfall in the Better Care Fund (BCF). We and the CCG 

agreed when the BCF was set up that £9.3m of funds would be made 

available in total by the two partners. The NHS would fund £5m, and the 

Council would fund £4.3m as a one-off in 2015/16, with the aim that the 

BCF would identify savings to eliminate the need for this contribution after 

2015/16, or the CCG would identify a source of funds for it. However we 

now have a significant concern that slippage on this approach is occurring 

without the underlying savings yet emerging on a joint budget of £280m. 

SCC is the junior financial partner in this arrangement. Consequently the 

£4.3m is now a corporate pressure, and in addition the CCG is currently 

only able to guarantee £3.5m of the £5m of its share of the funding. We and 

the CCG continue to discuss the funding and management of the BCF.  

 
6. The combined impact of the forecast potential overspends in Council-run 

services and in services run jointly with the NHS is that the latest monitoring 

position at month 5 is showing a forecast overspend of £15.8m. This is an 

improved position of £1.8m since the month 3 monitoring report.  The combined 

position is summarised in the table below.  

 

 

 

Portfolio Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 3

£000s £000s £000s

CYPF                          72,774 67,005 5,769 ò

COMMUNITIES                   144,358 137,119 7,239 ò

PLACE 144,857 144,946 (89) ñ

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 2,281 1,967 314 ó

RESOURCES                     53,814 53,669 145 ó

CORPORATE                     (402,285) (404,706) 2,421 ò

TOTAL 15,800 (0) 15,800 ò

Page 105Page 29



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

7. The cumulative effect of funding cuts due to the national austerity programme, 

combined with emerging social care pressures and the challenge of securing 

funding from Health are making the Council’s current financial predicament 

extremely difficult. Based on the current trajectory, it would appear highly likely 

that the Council is going to overspend this year. Although emergency measures 

are being considered, and plans are being put in place to balance the budget 

for 2017/18, the strategy to bring social care pressures under control will take at 

least a year to implement. 

Commentary 

8. The main variations since Month 3 are: 

 

· CYPF are forecasting an adverse movement of £2.4m since Month 3. This 

is due predominantly to £2.3m of additional costs on placements; this 

reflects the full year impact on the current number of placements and the 

cost of these placements for the remainder of the year. 

 

· Place are currently forecasting an improvement of £873k, which is due 

predominantly to budget savings with the Streets Ahead contract.  

 

· Policy, Performance & Communications are forecasting an improvement 

of £211k due to the renegotiation of a payment from the advertising income 

to the City Centre Events Strategy down from £232k to £150k, increased 

income from schools, and an increase in the mark-up on print brokerage 

services from 5% to 10%. 

 

· Resources are forecasting an improvement of £212k due to early payment 

discounts and project savings income which have now been confirmed and 

re-profiled.  

 

· Corporate are showing a forecast improvement of £3.3m due 

predominantly to an anticipated £2.7m pressure relating to the Independent 

Living Fund not materialising in 2016/17, an increase in cash balances 

available for investment, and reduced borrowing costs.. 

 
9. Full details of all reductions in spend, overspends and movements from the 

previous month within Portfolios are detailed in Appendix 1. 

 

 
 

Page 106Page 30



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

Approval Requests 

Budget Virements 
 
10. Communities are requesting to repurpose an obsolete budget line used to 

fund previous contract provision (Forge Centre) to cover pressure within the 

social worker staffing budgets in Adult Social Care £60k.  It should be noted if 

the virement is approved, this will have a nil impact on the overall Communities 

position.   

 

Public Health  

11. The Public Health ring-fenced grant is currently forecasting a £230k 

underspend against the original grant allocation.  Further details of the forecast 

outturn position on Public Health are reported in Appendix 2.  

 

Housing Revenue Account 

12. The 2016/17 budget is based on an assumed in year surplus of £13m which is 

to be used to fund the ongoing HRA Capital Investment Programme. In 

accordance with the HRA’s financial strategy any further in-year funds 

generated by the account will be used to provide further funding for the future 

HRA Capital Investment programme. 

 

13. As at month 5, early indications suggest an improved full year outturn position 

of £4m.  As such, the funding contribution to the capital investment programme 

will be revised from £13m to £17m.  Further details of the HRA forecast outturn 

can be found in Appendix 3 of this report. 
 

 

 

 

New Homes Bonus Fund 

£m 

Income Reserves as at 1/04/16 -7.1 

Anticipated 16/17 NHB Grant -9.3 

Total Income -16.4 

Expenditure 2016/17 Spend to Date 0.6 

Forecast to Year End 0.9 

Future Years' Approved Commitments 2.5 

Total Expenditure 4.0 

Funds Available  for Investment -12.4 

Page 107Page 31



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

14. Most of the expenditure to date has been on capital schemes improving London 

Road shop fronts and redeveloping the Arbourthorne area.  Officers are 

working on a number of substantial projects which will utilise the unspent 

balance and accelerate housing development and regeneration. These will be 

brought forward for approval by Members when ready. 

15. A review is currently being undertaken of the application of NHB so that it is 

directed to the Council’s strategic priorities, especially the promotion of growth 

within the city. One option would be to add the unallocated NHB to other capital 

funds to create a Growth Investment Fund with the capacity to fund substantial 

projects which would enable, and drive growth forward. 

 

Collection Fund 

 

16. Collection Fund monitoring will be reported in month 6 and will include the 

second quarter results.  Appendix 4 has been retained for the Collection Fund 

as blank for continuity for future months. 

 

Corporate Risk Register 

 

17. The Council maintains a Corporate Financial Risk Register which details the 

key financial risks facing the Council at a given point in time.  The Corporate 

Risk Register is reported quarterly and will be reported in month 6.  Appendix 

5 has been retained for the Corporate Risk Register as blank for continuity for 

future months. 

 

Capital Summary 

 

18. The forecast for 2016/17 has been increased by £11.1m on the Month 3 

forecast to £246.5m. The Approved programme budget is £255.2m, a 

difference of £8.7m. This represents a slippage rate of 3.4% which if delivered 

would be the best performance to date. The majority of the difference is in the 

Housing programme which is forecasting an underspend of £4.2m split equally 

between acquiring or building new council housing stock and refurbishment of 

existing properties.  

19. Further details of the Capital Programme monitoring are reported in 

Appendices 6 to 6.2. 

 

Page 108Page 32



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

Implications of this Report 

 

Financial implications 

20. The primary purpose of this report is to provide Members with information on 

the City Council’s Budget Monitoring position for 2016/17, and as such it does 

not make any recommendations which have additional financial implications for 

the City Council. 

 

Equal opportunities implications  

21. There are no specific equal opportunity implications arising from the 

recommendations in this report.   

 

Legal implications  

22. There are no specific legal implications arising from the recommendations in 

this report.   

 

Property implications 

23. Although this report deals, in part, with the Capital Programme, it does not, in 

itself, contain any property implications, nor are there any arising from the 

recommendations in this report. 
 

 

Recommendations 
 

24. Members are asked to: 

 

(a) Note the updated information and management actions provided by this 

report on the 2016/17 Revenue Budget position. 

 

(b) Approve the budget virement proposed by Communities detailed in 

paragraph 10; 
 

(c) Approve additional funding to support the delivery of the Local Plan detailed 

at paragraph 39 subject to delivery of specific milestones.  The project will be 

funded from Reserves and repaid from future efficiencies to be identified by the 

Director of Development Services as part of the Council’s Business Planning 

process in the Place portfolio. The profile of funding support and repayment is 

to be delegated to the Director of Finance and Commercial Services in 

Page 109Page 33



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 5 

consultation with the Head of Planning. Should alternative funding become 

available e.g. central government grant, this could be used instead. 
 

(d) In relation to the Capital Programme: 

(i) Approve the proposed additions to the Capital Programme listed in 
Appendix 6.1, including the procurement strategies and delegations of 
authority to the Director of Commercial Services or nominated Officer, 
as appropriate,  to award the necessary contracts following stage 
approval by Capital Programme Group; 
 

(ii) Approve the proposed variations, deletions and slippage in Appendix 
6.1;  

 
(iii) Approve the acceptance of the grant detailed on Appendix 6.2:  

 
and note 

 
(iv) the variations authorised by directors under the delegated authority 

provisions and the latest position on the Capital Programme: and 
 

(v) the latest position on the Capital Programme. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

25. To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme 

and gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations and to 

reset the capital programme in line with latest information. 
 

Alternative options considered 

26. A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the process 

undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to Members.  The 

recommendations made to Members represent what Officers believe to be the 

best options available to the Council, in line with Council priorities, given the 

constraints on funding and the use to which funding is put within the Revenue 

Budget and the Capital Programme. 

 

Dave Phillips 
Head of Strategic Finance 

Page 110Page 34



                 Appendix 1 

PORTFOLIO REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING AS AT  

31st AUGUST 2016 

 

Children Young People and Families (CYPF) 

Summary 

1. As at month 5 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an overspend 

£5.8m, an adverse movement of £2.4m from the month 3 position. The key 

reasons for the forecast outturn position are: 

· Business Strategy - £115k forecast overspend, the key reason is a 

forecast overspend of £106k on Transport, due to increased demand. 

· Children and Families - £5.7m forecast overspend, the key reasons are: 

· Fieldwork Services - a forecast overspend of £1m, this is mainly due to a 

forecast overspend on fieldwork staffing budgets of £342k, due to pressures 

on social workers and an increase in the number of caseloads, the planned 

tapering down model of social workers has been delayed and a number of 

temporary staff have been recruited to meet this increase in demand. £429k 

forecast overspend on non-staffing budgets, due to increased transport 

costs and contact time for Looked After Children. £206k forecast overspend 

on legal fees, due to an increase in the number of cases. 

· Health Strategy – a forecast overspend of £663k on Short Break and Direct 

Payments, due to the delay in anticipated savings due in year. 

· Provider Services – a forecast overspend of £534k, due to delays in 

anticipated savings on integrated residential and disability services with 

health, due in year. 

· Early Intervention and Prevention – a forecast overspend of £570k due to 

anticipated savings of £246k on uncommitted contracts, offset by a reduced 

expected contribution of £750k from the CCG, leaving a net overspend of 

£570k. 

· Placements – forecast overspend of £3m, this reflects the full year impact 

on the current number of placements and the costs of these placements for 

the remainder of the year. Also includes £250k overspend due to a 

reduction in the expected contribution from the CCG. 

· Inclusion and Learning Service – A forecast reduction in spend of £119k 

which is a number of small underspends across the service. 

Page 111Page 35



                 Appendix 1 

Financial Results 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS STRATEGY             2,488 2,373 115 ó

CHILDREN & FAMILIES           63,641 57,939 5,702 ñ

INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES (142) (23) (119) ò

LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN 6,787 6,716 71 ó

GRAND TOTAL 72,774 67,005 5,769 ñ  
 

DSG 

2. The following is a summary of the position on DSG budgets at month 5: 

 Month 3 
£000 

Month 3 
£000 

Business Strategy (172) (173) 

Children and Families 42 149 

Inclusion and Learning Services 679 1,060 

Lifelong Learning, Skills and 
Communities 

16 334 

 565 1,370 

Commentary 

3. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the month 3 

position 

Business Strategy 

4. A forecast £115k overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash limit 

and £173k forecast reduction in spend on DSG. Both cash limit and DSG are 

consistent with the month 3 position. 

Children and Families  

5. A forecast £5.7m overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash limit 

and £149k forecast overspend on DSG. This is an adverse movement of 

£2.7m on the cash position and an adverse movement of £107k on the DSG 

position from the month 3 position. 

6. The adverse movement on the cash position is due to an increase of £2.3m in 

Placements, this reflects the full year impact of the current number of 

placements and the cost of these placements for the remainder of the year. 

The forecast assumes that any further demand increases can be managed to 

within he current numbers. There is also an adverse movement of £645k due 

to delays in anticipated savings; these include £250k health income, £75k for 

Short Breaks, £170k for transition to independent living and £150k for an 

integrated approach to Health and Social Care. 

Page 112Page 36



                 Appendix 1 

7. The adverse movement on the DSG position of £107k is a £90k movement on 

Children with Disabilities (CWD) Placements, where the anticipated 

contribution from health, for shared cases, has been reduced, therefore, 

increasing the Council’s contribution. 

Inclusion and Learning Service  

8. A forecast £119k reduction in spend (shown in the table above) relating to 

cash limit and £1.1m forecast overspend on DSG. 

9. The cash limit position is an improvement of £167k from the month 3 position. 

This is an improvement in a number of areas across the service following a 

review of all budgets. 

10. The DSG is an adverse movement of £381k from the month 3 position. The 

main reason for the movement is due to delays in the anticipated savings from 

the redesign of education services of £368k. 

Lifelong Learning Skills and Communities   

11. A forecast £71k overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash limit 

and £334k forecast overspend on DSG. 

12. The cash limit is consistent with the month 3 position. 

13. The DSG is an adverse movement of £318k from month 3.  The main reason 

for the movement is an increase in costs of Post 16 High Needs of £321k.  

This is due to an increase in demand of £180k and additional learners for the 

Sheaf Training Unit of £140k. 

 

Communities Portfolio 

Summary 

14. As at month 5, the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an over spend of 

£7.2m. The key reasons for the outturn position are: 

Performance, Information and Planning underspend of £259k: 

· The underspend position for Performance, Information and Planning Service 

(PIPS) is mainly due to the pay award budget of £458k held in Executive but 

matched by spend across the portfolio along with a reduction in spend on mail 

and insurance contracts of £151k and supplies and services of £15k   There are 

net over spends on staffing of £205k across the service and additional costs on 

software licences and the Whole Family Case Management project £130k.  HR 

services charge of £34k is a further over spend.   

 

Page 113Page 37



                 Appendix 1 

Care & Support over spend of £4.3m:  

· Access, Prevention and Reablement forecasts a net over spend of £78k due to 

spend on agency staff partly netted of by an under spend on minor works and 

adaptations.  

· Learning Disabilities returned an outturn of £2.8m overspent. This is made up 

of:-  

o Purchasing LD is forecasting an over spend of £2.7m.  This over 

spend is made up £3.0m of new client costs that have emerged in 

2016/17, £904k of forecast unachieved savings, offset by an under 

spend against the clients rolled forwards from 2015/16 of £1.1m. 

o LD Assessment and Care Management is forecasting an over spend 

of £495k due to full year cost of additional review teams. 

o LD Provider services is forecasting an under spend of £470k due to 

reductions in client hours as a result of a movement of clients from in- 

house services to independent provision (hours moved to purchasing 

budget) and the subsequent reduction in use of agency staff and 

bank staff. 

· Long Term Support is showing an over spend of £1.5m.  This comprises the net 

position of an over spend in adults purchasing of £1.7m, with an under spend 

on staff of £158k along with the saving against Forge Centre £71k due to 

reduction in contracts. 

· Provider Services is reporting an under spend against budget of £43k.  The 

under spend is due to a £283k reduction in spend on Carers in the Adult 

Placement Shared Lives Service and under spends on salaries against 

Care4You Business and Performance £66k and Community Support Services 

£86k.  This is netted down by a reported over spend against City Wide Care 

Alarms £391k as a result of lower income than budgeted.  Reablement 

Services report a position which is almost balanced to budget as a result of 

drawdown of £184k of corporate funding to cover salary costs until full 

implementation of the MER. 

· Contributions to Care has an over spend position of £119k against budget.  

This figure is made up of an over spend against Social Care Accounts Service 

(SCAS) staffing of £46k with additional pressure of £50k in Public Health Direct 

Payments.  This is net of overachievements in Integrated Charge income of 

£217k and Residential income of £534k, offset by under achievements of £378k 

in Property Income and in Continuing Health Care (CHC) income of £397k.  

Page 114Page 38



                 Appendix 1 

· Safeguarding service is reporting an over spend of £33k as a result of spend on 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) advocacy services for hospitals. 

Commissioning over spend of £3.2m:  

· A forecast reduction in spend of £424k is reported by Commissioned Housing 

which is mainly due to a delay in implementation of new Housing Related 

Support Contracts coupled with annualised contracted savings. 

· An over spend against Commissioned Mental Health Services of £3.3m. This is 

made up of a £3.7m overspend in Mental Health purchasing and £80k 

overspend in the S75 Mental Health contract offset by forecast under spends 

on the Older People Mental Health contract of £433k and the Partnership and 

Grant Aid budget of £80k. Further negotiations are on-going with the Care Trust 

to determine the cost of the S75 contract but the forecast over spend reflects 

current activity. There is an on-going conversation with the CCG to enable joint 

planning to be done in order to bring the over spend down within 2016/17. 

Future forecasting will be reflective of outcomes in this work. 

· An over spend on Public Health Drug and Alcohol (DACT) of £89k. The majority 

of this is due to a forecast over spend on non-contract treatment costs of £47k. 

The Contract payment for DIP has a negotiated reduction which has resulted in 

an under spend against budget of £45k.  This is offset with an over spend of 

£45k in the Drug programme, a £22k overspend on the DACT team and £17k in 

the Alcohol programme. 

· Social Care Commissioning Service forecasts an over spend of £184k.  There 

is a forecast overspend of £233k on the British Red Cross contract for 

Independent Living Solutions (Equipment and Adaptations) along with an 

additional £24k increase in PH Communities staff due to additional resource 

planned to continue past the original deadline of November.  This is partly 

offset by an under spend in quality contracts of £46k and a £25k saving due to 

vacancies. 

Community Services over spend of £292k:  

· The Voluntary Sector area is showing an over spend of £182k, £57k of which is 

due to £119k unachieved 15/16 savings on Grants offset by a temp saving of 

£62k which has been found this year.  The remainder is an “approved” staffing 

over spend on Health and Social Care integration budget £56k and loss of 

income from Sheffield Teaching Hospitals £65k. 

· Locality Area is overspent by £20k as result of £45k unachieved 15/16 saving 

offset by £25k of temporary vacancy savings. 

Page 115Page 39



                 Appendix 1 

· Library Services are forecast to underspend by £14k.  The Libraries and 

Archives over recovery of income of £48k and savings on staff costs are partly 

eliminated by loss of World Metal Index income £56k with the associated cost 

of redundancies (anticipated service closure within  2016/17) and over spends 

on the Leadership Team of £49k  

· Public Health budgets are over spent by £106k as a result of contract values 

exceeding budget by £56k, the remainder £50k is as a result of an over spend 

on staffing due to slippage on the MER. 

Housing General Fund under spend of £297k 

· The under spend in Housing General Fund is mainly due to: 

· City Wide Housing Services £214k under spend due of low uptake of small 

grants in Local Assistance Scheme, savings on staffing and higher than 

anticipated income. 

· Business Planning £24k under spend resulting from savings on staffing. 

· Neighbourhood Intervention and Support £164k under spend mainly as a result 

of higher than anticipated income. 

· Sustainable City £105k projected over spend which is still subject to review. 

 

Financial Results  

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

PIP 4,916 5,176 (259) ò

CARE AND SUPPORT              101,500 97,165 4,335 ñ

COMMISSIONING    27,852 24,684 3,168 ò

COMMUNITY SERVICES            6,566 6,274 292 ò

HOUSING GENERAL FUND          3,523 3,820 (297) ò

GRAND TOTAL 144,358 137,119 7,239 ñ  
 

Commentary 

15. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the last report at 

Month 3. 

PIPS  

16. A forecast £259k reduction in spend. This is an improved position of £164k 

from the position in Month 3. 

17. The favourable movement is mainly due to funding confirmed for BCF project 

which was recorded as a cost pressure in month 3. This is partly offset by 

Page 116Page 40



                 Appendix 1 

withdrawal of £56k of PH funding against Business Support posts and new 

costs for IT Licences/WFCM project. 

Care and Support 

18. A forecast £4.3m. This is a worsening position of £1.2m from the position in 

Month 3. 

19. Assessment, Prevention and Reablement are reporting a £78k over spend, an 

adverse movement of £105k since month 3.  This is due to the extension of 

contracts for agency staff working on SPA/TOC projects. 

20. Long Term Care reports an over spend of £1.5m which is a £138k favourable 

move on the position reported in month 3. The position has improved mainly as 

a result of the review of the costs of social work staff.  

21. The LD position has improved by £10k from Month 3. However this is net of an 

increase in client costs in the purchasing budget of £691k and an increase in 

the purchasing budget of £700k due to an overachievement of income in the 

Continuing Health Care budget.  

22. Provider Services report an under spend £43k which is an adverse move of 

£190k since month 3. This adverse move is as a result of budgets moving to 

the STIT service which has reduced the call on corporate reserves. 

23. Safeguarding Services report an over spend of £33k as a result of increased 

costs of DoLS advocacy for hospitals, this accounts for the adverse movement 

since month 3. 

Commissioning  

24. A forecast £3.2m over spend.  This is an improved position by £313k from the   

previous month. 

25. The improved position is due to Mental Health clients moving to adult services 

£200k coupled with a reduction in pressures built in for Sandford House and 

Bowden Lodge as we have now seen emerging which has been reflected in the 

forecasts. These improvements were slightly offset by a high cost package 

client moving from LD £147k.  There had been further savings in Housing 

Commissioning due the slippage of projects for Homelessness, Single and 

Housing First of £288k as planned start dates are for December 2016.   Social 

Care Commissioning has shown a worsened position by £27k due to previous 

forecast under spend against staffing where recruitment has now taken place. 

 DACT has seen an improvement of £59k which is a reduction in prescribing 

costs in the non-contract treatment budget. 

Page 117Page 41



                 Appendix 1 

Community Services  

26. A forecast £292k over spend.  This is an improved position of £200k from the 

position in Month 3. 

27. The favourable movement is due to savings as a result of the implementation of 

the MER. 

Housing General Fund  

28.  A forecast £297k under spend.  This is an improvement of £131k from the 

position in Month 3.  

29.  This is primarily due to lower than expected uptake of grants on the Local 

Assistance Scheme £45k and higher than anticipated income £76k. 

Proposed Budget Virements for Month 5  

30. Request from the Head of Long Term Care and Support to repurpose an 

obsolete budget line used to fund previous contract provision (Forge Centre) to 

cover pressure within the   social worker staffing budgets in Adult Social Care 

£60k. 

Year to date 

31.  The forecast £7.2m overspend is a slight reduction on the extrapolated full year 

effect of the variance at Month 5 of £3.5m. The reasons are mainly due to 

payment profiles in the purchasing budgets, especially where increases in 

activity forecasted are not yet showing in actuals.  In other areas accruals have 

not been taken where for example payments are made in advance or where 

additional funding has been received and spend is expected on staffing and 

contracts as the year progresses which Month 5 figures do not include. 

 

Place Portfolio 

Summary 

· As at month 5 the Portfolio is forecasting a balanced full year outturn (£89k 

underspend), an improvement of £873k from the month 3 position.  

· This position assumes the delivery of £1.2m of approved budget savings 

within the Streets Ahead programme of £1m and Parking Services activities 

of £200k, which are forecast to be implemented in the second half of the 

financial year.  Any slippage in these timescales for delivery would have a 

significant impact on the current reported position and require immediate in 

year action. 

 

Page 118Page 42



                 Appendix 1 

Financial Results 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION 32,242 32,357 (115) ò

CREATIVE SHEFFIELD            2,850 2,680 170 ò

CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT         30,146 30,161 (15) ó

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 79,619 79,748 (129) ò

GRAND TOTAL 144,857 144,946 (89) ò  
 

Commentary 

32. The following commentary concentrates on key risks and changes from the 

month 3 position. 

Business Strategy & Regulation  

33. As at month 5 there is a £115k forecast underspend, which shows an 

improvement of £431k on month 3, largely due to a one-off reduction in spend 

from the settlement of a contractor dispute on prior years income due on the 

waste management contract of £300k.  

Creative Sheffield  

34. As at month 5 there is a £170k forecast overspend, which shows an 

improvement of £136k on month 3, due to further cost reductions identified 

and additional income now secured.  

35. The key pressure is within the City Regeneration Division which operates as a 

trading account and is forecasting a £132k shortfall in income to fund its 

activities, based on secured funding bids for approved projects.  Plans are 

being developed for further bids and/or cost reductions to address this 

position.   

Development Services  

36. As at month 5 there is a £129k forecast underspend, which shows an 

improvement of £199k on the month 3 position. 

37. The key change is additional forecast planning fee income of £240k which is 

ambitious compared to prior years and will require constant monitoring 

against specific planned developments in the City. 

38. As identified above, the position assumes £1.2m savings will be secured in 

the second half year on Streets Ahead and Parking Services activities. 

39. Cabinet is recommended to approve a temporary increase in the department’s 

budget of up to £373k over the next two years in order to provide additional 

Page 119Page 43



                 Appendix 1 

staffing resource to improve the quality and accelerate the delivery of the 

Local Plan to meet national timescales.  The allocation will be funded from 

Reserves and repaid from future efficiencies to be identified by the Director of 

Development Services as part of the Council’s Business Planning process in 

the Place portfolio. Should alternative funding become available e.g. central 

government grant, this could be used instead 

 

Resources Portfolio 

Summary 

40. As at month 5 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an over spend 

of £145k, an improvement of £212k from the month 3 position. The key 

reasons for the forecast outturn position are: 

· An over spend of £262k on Customer Services due to the Customer 

Engagement Programme being unachievable in this financial year and 

incurring additional employee costs in order to maintain operational 

KPIs. 

· An over spend of £297k on Transport and Facilities Management mainly 

to the Voluntary Registration of Land project no longer being eligible for 

funding from the New Homes Bonus and no alternative funding having 

been approved, together with rising costs in relation to the operation of 

Burngreave New Deal for Communities for which no funding has been 

identified. 

Offset by: 

· A reduction in spend of £206k on Commercial Services (Savings) due to 

confirmation and re-profiling of all the Early Payment Discounts and 

Project Savings. 

· A reduction in spend of £231k on Central Costs due mainly from reduced 

numbers requiring funding in relation to Former Employee Pensions. 

Page 120Page 44



                 Appendix 1 

Financial Results 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS CHANGE & INFORMATION SOLUTIONS 944 997 (53) ó

COMMERCIAL SERVICES           707 745 (38) ó

COMMERCIAL SERVICES (SAVINGS) (2,304) (2,098) -206 ò

0 ó

CUSTOMER SERVICES             2,786 2,524 262 ó

FINANCE                       5,495 5,435 60 ó

HUMAN RESOURCES               3,417 3,450 (33) ó

LEGAL SERVICES                3,655 3,567 88 ñ

RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & PLANNING   173 174 (1) ó

TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT  16,316 16,019 297 ó

TOTAL 31,189 30,813 376 ò

CENTRAL COSTS                 22,219 22,450 (231) ó

HOUSING BENEFIT 406 406 0 ó

GRAND TOTAL 53,814 53,669 145 ò  

Commentary 

41. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the previous 

month. 

Commercial Services  

42. A forecast £206k reduction in spending, due to all the Early Payment Discounts 

and Project Savings income having now been confirmed and re-profiled. This is 

an improvement of £206k from the month 3 position. 

43. The improvement from month 3 is due to all the Early Payment Discounts and 

Project Savings income having now been confirmed and re-profiled. 

 

Policy, Performance and Communications Portfolio 

Summary 

44. As at month 5 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an over spend of 

£314k, an improvement of £211k from the month 3 position. The key reasons 

for the forecast outturn position are: 

· £358k over spend on Communications mainly due to the Clear Channel 

small format advertising contract still not being completed and delays to the 

JC Decaux contract means that no income will now be received in relation 

to the large format advertising until January 2017. 

Page 121Page 45



                 Appendix 1 

Financial Results 

Service Forecast FY FY Movement

Outturn Budget Variance from Month 

£000s £000s £000s

ACCOUNTABLE BODY ORGANISATIONS 0 0 0 ó

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 2,416 2,102 314 ò

PUBLIC HEALTH (135) (135) 0 ó

GRAND TOTAL 2,281 1,967 314 ò  
 

Commentary 

45. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the previous 

month. 

Policy, Performance & Communication 

46. A forecast £314k overspend, due to under recovery of income arising from the 

delays in agreeing the advertising contracts. This represents an in-year cash 

flow issue, rather than an underlying structural problem with the budget. A 

proposal is to be put to the Executive Director Resources for an Invest to Save 

arrangement to use advertising income in future years to reduce the projected 

overspend in 2016/17. This is an improvement of £211k from the month 3 

position. 

47. The improvement from month 3 is due to the renegotiation of a payment from 

the advertising income to the City Centre Events Strategy down from £232k to 

£150k. Income has also increased from schools and the mark up on print 

brokerage services has been increased from 5% to 10% (though this still 

represents a reduction from last year’s mark-up rate of 16%). 

 

Corporate  

Summary 

48. As at month 5, the Corporate portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of a 

£2.4m overspend. 

· Corporate Expenditure:  Corporate wide budgets that are not allocated to 

individual services / portfolios, including capital financing costs and the 

provision for redundancy / severance costs.  

· Corporate income: Revenue Support Grant, locally retained business rates 

and Council tax income, some specific grant income and contributions 

to/from reserves. 

Page 122Page 46



                 Appendix 1 

Financial Results 

49. The table below shows the items which are classified as Corporate and which 

include: 

 

Service Forecast FY FY

Outturn Budget Variance

£000s £000s £000s

CAPITAL FINANCING       33,994 34,375 (381)

CORPORATE ITEMS (436,279) (439,081) 2,802

GRAND TOTAL (402,285) (404,706) 2,421  

50. Corporate are showing a forecast overspend of £2.4m, which is due to the 

anticipated shortfall in the Better Care Fund (BCF). We have a significant 

concern that after 18 months the BCF has not realised any savings on a joint 

budget of £280m. 

51. The improvement this month compared to month 3 is due predominantly to the 

anticipated £2.7m pressure relating to the Independent Living Fund not 

materialising in 2016/17, an increase in cash balances available for investment 

and reduced borrowing costs. 

Page 123Page 47



 

Page 124Page 48



  Appendix 2 

PUBLIC HEALTH BUDGET MONITORING AS AT 

31st AUGUST 2016 
 

Purpose of the Report 

1. To report on the 2016/17 Public Health grant spend across the Council for the 

month ending 31st August 2016. 

2. The report provides details of the forecast full year spend of Public Health grant 

compared to budget.  

3. The net reported position for each portfolio/service area would normally be zero 

as public health spend is matched by a draw down of public health grant. For the 

purposes of this report, and in order to identify where corrective action may be 

necessary, we have shown actual expenditure compared to budget where there is 

an underspend position.   
 

Summary 

4. At month 5 the overall position was a forecast underspend of £230k which is 

summarised in the table below. 

 

Portfolio 

Forecast Full 

Year 

Expenditure 

Full Year 

Expenditure 

Budget 

Full Year 

Variance 

as at M5 

Full Year 

Variance 

as at M3 

Movement 

from Prior 

Month 

CYPF 17,981 17,981 0 0 0 

COMMUNITIES 12,340 12,387 -47 -9 -38 

PLACE 2,682 2,783 -101 4 -105 

DIRECTOR OF PH 2,081 2,163 -82 -42 -40 

Total 35,084 35,314 -230 -47 -183 

 

5. Key reasons for the forecast under spend are: 

· CYP forecast to budget 

· £47k underspend in Communities mainly due to reduced spend in Mental 

Health Commissioning contract activity. 

· £101k underspend in Place mainly due to employee reduced spend to 

budget  

Page 125Page 49



  Appendix 2 

· £82k under spend in Director of PH due to reduced spend around GP 

health checks 

 

6. Key Reason for month on month changes are: 

· £38k improvement in Mental Health Commissioning. Specifically, reduced 

spend against Older People and Partnership Contracts. However, these 

contracts are demand led so there is a possibility that costs will increase in 

the future. 

· £105k improvement due to £25k anticipated under spend on stop smoking 

project and £80k staffing underspend 

· £40 improvement is as a result of continuing under spend on GP Health 

Checks. In addition, there anticipated savings as a result of unfilled 

vacancies. 
 

 

Page 126Page 50



  Appendix 3 
 
 

HRA BUDGET MONITORING AS AT 

31st AUGUST 2016 

 

Purpose of this Report 

1. To provide a summary report on the HRA 2016/2017 revenue budget for the 

month ending 31 August 2016, and agree any actions necessary. 

2. The content of this report will be used as the basis of the content of the budget 

monitoring report to the Executive Management Team and to Members. 

Summary 

3. The HRA Business Plan is based on the principle of ensuring that investment and 

services required for council housing is met by income raised in the HRA. 

4. The 2016-17 budget is based on an assumed in year position of £13m which is to 

be used to fund the ongoing HRA Capital Investment Programme. In accordance 

with the HRA’s financial strategy any further in- year funds generated by the 

account will be used to provide further funding for the future HRA Capital 

Investment programme. 

5. As at month, 5 early indications suggest an improved full year outturn position of 

£4m. As such, the funding contribution to the capital investment programme will 

be revised from £13m to £17m (shown in the table). This is in line with the HRA 

Business Plan which sets out the Council’s plans and priorities for council 

housing over the next five years.  

6. Main areas contributing to the outturn include a net increase in income of £432k 

primarily as a result of a reduced level of bad debt provision offset by a higher 

turnover of vacant properties; an increase in other income of £80k mainly due to 

an increase in service charge income; a reduction in overall running costs of 

£2.9m and a reduction of £156k due to revised borrowing assumptions.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 127Page 51



  Appendix 3 
 
 

Financial Results 

Housing  Revenue Account (excluding 

Community Heating)

FY Outturn 

£000's

FY Budget 

£000's

FY Variance 

£000's

1.NET INCOME DWELLINGS (147,182) (146,750) (432)

2.OTHER INCOME (6,604) (6,524) (80)

3.HOMES-REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 32,503 32,870 (367)

4.DEPRECIATION-CAP FUND PROG 39,436 39,436 -

5.TENANT SERVICES 49,856 52,855 (2,999)

6.INTEREST ON BORROWING 14,974 15,130 (156)

Total (17,017) (12,983) (4,034)

7.CONTRIBUTION TO CAP PROG 17,017 12,983 4,034  

 
Community Heating 

7. The budgeted position for Community Heating is a draw down from Community 

Heating reserves of £293k.  As at month 5 the forecast position is a contribution 

to reserves of £128k, an improvement of £421k.  This is mainly due to lower 

than expected usage due to the mild weather and a reduction in overall energy 

costs.  

 
 

Community Heating

FY Outturn 

£000's

FY Budget 

£000's

FY Variance 

£000's

Income (2,832) (2,723) (109)

Expenditure 2,704 3,016 (312)

Total (128) 293 (421)  

 

Housing Revenue Account Risks 

8. There are a number of future risks and uncertainties that could impact on the 

30 year HRA business plan.  As well as the introduction of Universal Credit and 

changes to Housing Benefits, the Government has announced a number of 

further changes in the Housing and Planning bill and Welfare Reform and Work 

bill. These include a revision to social housing rent policy, which will reduce 

rents for the next three years. This will have a considerable impact on the 

resources available to the HRA. In addition, the Government’s “Pay to Stay” 

proposals and other changes in the Housing and Planning bill will impact on 

both tenants and the HRA business plan. Work is continually ongoing to assess 

the financial impact of these. Other identified risks to the HRA are: 

Page 128Page 52



  Appendix 3 
 
 

· Interest rates:  Fluctuations in the future levels of interest rates have 

always been recognised as a risk to the HRA. These are managed through 

the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. 

 

· Repairs and Maintenance:  Existing and emerging risks within the revenue 

repairs budget include unexpected increased demand (for example due to 

adverse weather conditions) and future changes to contractual 

arrangements. 

 

Page 129Page 53



 

Page 130Page 54



Appendix 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is left intentionally blank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is left intentionally blank. 

 

Page 131Page 55



 

Page 132Page 56



Appendix 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is left intentionally blank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is left intentionally blank. 

 

Page 133Page 57



 

Page 134Page 58



2016/17  Appendix 6 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING AS AT 

31st AUGUST 2016 
 

Summary 

 

1. The forecast for 2016/17 has been increased by £11.1m on the Month 3 

forecast to £246.5m. The Approved programme budget is £255.2m, a 

difference of £8.7m. This represents a slippage rate of 3.4% which if 

delivered would be the best performance to date. The majority of the 

difference is in the Housing programme which is forecasting an 

underspend of £4.2m split equally between acquiring or building new 

council housing stock and refurbishment of existing properties.  

2. The table below shows that at Month 5, the year to date spend is 

£10.1m (11%) below programme reflecting further £4.5m of slippage in 

the last 2 months primarily in Housing (£2.1m) Highways (£0.6m) and 

CYPF (£1.6m). £8.7m (86%) of the slippage is in projects outside the 

Top 20 projects.   

3. The chart at paragraph 4 shows that capital programme spend rates in 

2016/17 are almost identical to 2015/16 where the Outturn was £232m. 

The current forecast is £246.5m requiring an increased rate of spend 

which should arise as a result of major projects such as the city centre 

development work. 

Financials 2016/17 

 

 

Portfolio Spend to 

date

Budget 

to Date

Variance 

to date

Full Year 

forecast

Full Year 

Budget 

Full Year 

Variance on  

Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

CYPF 9,281 12,945 (3,664) 34,448 36,231 (1,783)

Place 21,854 22,755 (900) 62,907 65,381 (2,474)

Housing 30,287 33,689 (3,402) 95,638 99,865 (4,227)

Highways 4,174 4,850 (676) 10,550 9,963 587 

Communities 49 - 49 374 325 49 

Resources 1,015 2,522 (1,506) 13,015 13,891 (876)

Corporate 13,947 13,947 (0) 29,582 29,582 (0)

Grand Total 80,608 90,708 (10,100) 246,514 255,238 (8,724)

Page 135Page 59



2016/17  Appendix 6 

4. Forecast trends 

 

 

5. Capital Programme  

 

The revised programme shows a net increase of £5.7m reflecting additional 

spend on the schools expansion programme (£4.4m) and additional HRA 

funding of capital schemes in the Housing programme.  

 

 

Capital Programme

2016-17 2017-18 Future Total

£m £m £m £m

Month 4 Approved Budget 260.9 203.0 261.6 725.5

Additions 2.4 0.6 0.0 3.0

Variations -3.4 6.6 -1.6 1.7

Slippage & Acceleration -4.6 -2.0 7.6 1.0

Month 5 Approved Budget 255.2 208.2 267.7 731.2

Page 136Page 60



2016/17  Appendix 6 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

6. From the start of this year the Council has introduced an improved 

system of reporting and monitoring project delivery. This will collect in 

one place, all project highlight reports which will be accessible to all 

users and, from August, provide the basis for workflow driven meeting 

agendas for each stage of the Gateway Approval process.  The 

progress of a project will be readily evident. 

7. This should give better visibility of performance and lead to improved 

project controls because: 

· Project Managers will create their monthly highlight reports in SharePoint  

- showing key issues, risks and items for the Sponsor to review - and 

these will be visible to all as well as providing a central repository which 

can be used in future audit work from external funders; 

· Project sponsors can review and approve the reports within SharePoint; 

and 

· Programme Boards will receive a “dashboard” report showing the status 

of projects.  This should lead to improved supervision, better control and 

thus improved delivery performance of projects. 

Commentary   

 

8. The Top 20 projects in the Capital Programme accounts for 69% of the 

current 2016/17 budget.  The key forecast variances from Budget at 

Month 5 include: 

· Housing programme is forecasting to be £4.2m below budget by the 

year end.  Two appointed contractors on the new Build Housing 

Phase 2 (£4.5m) and Obsolete Heating (£3.7m) projects have gone 

into administration causing a delay whilst the work is reprocured. 

The new contractors programme of works are yet to be profiled.  The 

remainder of the variance is accounted for by £1.0m of anticipated 

cost savings and £4.9m of schemes which are forecast but subject 

to Cabinet approval so have no approved budget; 

· Place programme is forecast to be £2.5m below budget principally 

due to 2 projects.  The Lower Don Valley Flood Defence project is 

forecasting £1.3m slippage.  This is a novel and complex project 

with multiple interventions along the river and has been very difficult 

Page 137Page 61



2016/17  Appendix 6 

to forecast the rate of spend and progress. The construction of the 

Olympic Legacy Park public realm and site infrastructure is also 

forecasting £1.0m slippage due to an aggressive initial forecast 

spend rate. Officers are developing a plan to pull this back on track. 

· The Highways programme is forecasting to be £0.6m above budget 

due to further contaminated land costs associated with the 

construction of the BRT North link.  A detailed cost assessment is 

being prepared and a further report and approval submission will 

prepared for Members within the next two months; 

· The CYPF programme is forecast to be £1.8m below Budget of 

which £1.5m is due to anticipated final costs being below the 

approved budget on 5 projects offset by a potential overspend at 

Hallam. £0.3m of the £0.7m work at Aldine House Secure Unit is 

forecast to slip into 17/18 following a re-design of the 

accommodation. 

Year to date variance 

· Of the £10.1m year to date variance, £3.7m and £3.4m is on the 

Schools and Housing programmes respectively. In the Schools 

programme, £1.2m is due to anticipated cost savings on projects 

which have been procured at a lower cost, £0.7m on the schools 

expansion programme where the configuration of the programme 

has been reviewed as initial cost estimates are above the budget. 

This has delayed detailed design work. The remaining variance is on 

approximately fifteen schemes which are £0.1m to £0.2m. 

· In Housing, which is £3.4m behind the plan at Month 5, a slow start 

by the contractor on the Kitchen and Bathrooms refit programme has 

left this programme £1.9m behind the planned profile. The Council 

Housing Acquisitions and Repairs programme is £0.9m behind plan 

because there have not been suitable properties coming onto the 

market to acquire. The remaining variance is spread across the 

programme. 

· There is a £1.5m shortfall against budget on the Resources Fire 

Risk Assessment programme which requires re-profiling to reflect 

the latest physical delivery plan. 

 

Page 138Page 62



2016/17  Appendix 6 

 

Approvals 

9. A number of schemes have been submitted for approval in line with the 

Council’s agreed capital approval process.  

Below is a summary of the number and total value of schemes in each 

approval category: 

· 4 additions to the capital programme with a value of £2.77m: 

·  2 variations to the capital programme amounting to a net increase of 

£13k: 

· 2 slippage requests of £3.5m; and 

· A grant of £4.9m from the Sheffield City Region for the development 

of the Olympic Legacy Park. 

Further details of the schemes listed above can be found in Appendix 6.1 and 

6.2. 

Finance 

October 2016 

 

 

Page 139Page 63



 

Page 140Page 64



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

S
c

h
e

m
e
 D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
T

y
p

e
 

V
a

lu
e
 

£
0

0
0
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
 

 
 

 
 

T
H

R
IV

IN
G

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

G
R

E
A

T
 P

L
A

C
E

 T
O

 L
IV

E
 :

- 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 
 

 
 

IT
S

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
IT

S
 (

In
te

lli
g
e

n
t 

T
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 S

y
s
te

m
s
) 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
h
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 a
im

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

lia
b

ili
ty

 /
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e

s
 o

n
 

th
e

 k
e

y
 r

o
u

te
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
In

 t
h

is
 w

a
y
, 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

’s
 c

o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e
 i
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
 (

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

a
t 

p
e

a
k
 t

im
e

s
) 

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 i
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 o

n
 t
h
e

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o

 h
a
n

d
le

 t
h
e

 
a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
s
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
's

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 g

ro
w

s
.  

 T
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 I

n
te

lli
g
e

n
t 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 (

IT
S

) 
d
e

m
a

n
d
 l
e

d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a

t 
ta

c
k
le

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

b
e

in
g
 r

e
a

lis
e

d
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 a
ll 

k
n
o

w
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 h

o
t 

s
p

o
ts

 o
n
 k

e
y
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 r
o

u
te

s
, 
a

n
d
 h

a
v
e

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e

e
n

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n

 P
L
T

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 a

s
 c

a
n

d
id

a
te

s
 f
o

r 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 c

o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
d

e
la

y
s
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e

 r
e

lia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 s

m
o

o
th

in
g
 t

ra
ff

ic
 f

lo
w

s
 a

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 
c
o

n
g
e

s
ti
o

n
 h

o
t 
s
p

o
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 f
o

c
u

s
 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 &

 1
7

/1
8

 i
s
 i
n

 8
 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
s
: 

A
6

1
0
2

 H
e

rr
ie

s
 R

o
a
d

 –
 M

o
o

n
s
h

in
e

 L
a

n
e
, 

A
6

1
 H

a
lif

a
x
 R

o
a

d
 –

 P
e

n
is

to
n

e
 R

o
a

d
, 
A

5
7
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 
P

a
rk

w
a

y
, 

A
5

7
 M

o
s
s
 W

a
y
 –

 C
o

is
le

y
 H

ill
 –

 E
c
k
in

g
to

n
 W

a
y
, 
A

5
7
 B

ro
o
m

h
ill

 C
o

rr
id

o
r,

 A
6

1
3
5

 
B

a
rn

s
le

y
 R

o
a

d
 –

 A
6

1
0
2

 F
ir
 V

a
le

, 
A

6
1

0
2

 G
le

a
d

le
s
s
 T

o
w

n
 E

n
d
, 

A
6

1
0
2

 M
id

d
le

w
o

o
d

 R
o
a

d
 /
 

C
a

tc
h

 B
a

r 
L

a
n

e
 

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 S

ta
ff

 F
e

e
s
: 
£

3
7

1
k
 

A
m

e
y
 D

e
s
ig

n
 F

e
e

s
 f
o

r 
C

o
is

le
y
 H

ill
 o

n
ly

: 
£

5
0

k
 

N
e

w
 

6
8

5
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

t 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
C

P
G

 
to

 a
p

p
o

in
t 

A
m

e
y
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 
te

n
d
e

re
d

 r
a
te

s
 

s
e

t 
o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

A
m

e
y
 m

a
in

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

 

Page 141Page 65



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

A
m

e
y
 C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
: 
£

2
6

5
k
 

 T
h
e

re
fo

re
 a

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
o
f 

£
6

8
6

k
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
, 
£

2
4

1
k
 i
n

 1
6

/1
7

 &
 £

4
4

5
k
 i
n

 1
7
/1

8
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 (

L
T

P
) 

 T
h
e

 w
o

rk
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 s

ta
ff

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 i
s
: 

• 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ig
n

a
l 
ti
m

in
g
s
 (

o
n

 a
 c

o
rr

id
o

r 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
t 

th
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

s
) 

• 
M

o
d

e
lli

n
g

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
a

l 
ti
m

in
g
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 

• 
C

o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 t

h
e

 i
d
e

a
l 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 n

e
e

d
e
d

, 
th

e
n
 (

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
a
p

it
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t)

 
• 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 v
e

h
ic

le
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 t

im
e

s
 o

n
 a

 c
o

rr
id

o
r 

• 
C

h
a

n
g
in

g
 s

ig
n

a
l 
ti
m

in
g
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

, 
th

e
n

 r
e
p

e
a

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
 p

e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
u
p

 t
o

 t
h

re
e

 
m

o
n
th

s
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t,

 l
e
a
d

in
g
 t

o
 

• 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

n
 c

o
rr

id
o

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t

w
e

lv
e

 m
o

n
th

s
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 
 

 
 

C
a

s
tl

e
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 G
re

e
n

 L
in

k
s

  
In

 2
0

1
2
 a

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 f
o

r 
S

h
e

a
f 

V
a

lle
y
 P

a
rk

 P
h
a

s
e
s
 2

, 
3
 &

 4
. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 
P

h
a

s
e
 4

 o
f 

th
e

 S
h

e
a
f 

V
a

lle
y
 P

a
rk

 p
ro

je
c
t.
 T

h
e

 f
o

rm
e

r 
C

a
s
tl
e
 C

o
lle

g
e

 s
it
e

 w
a

s
 a

c
q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 H
o
m

e
s
 &

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 (

H
C

A
).

 I
n

 2
0

1
3

 t
h
e

 H
C

A
 s

e
c
u

re
d
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
8

4
 u

n
it
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 2

5
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 u
n

it
s
. 

K
ie

r 
L

iv
in

g
 w

a
s
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

n
e

w
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

s
it
e

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
e

n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
in

k
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 

S
h

re
w

s
b

u
ry

 R
d

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t.
 S

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 G

ro
w

th
 

B
o

a
rd

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 w

a
iv

e
r 

fo
r 

p
a

y
m

e
n
t 

to
 K

ie
r,

 t
h

e
 l
in

k
 a

n
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 o

p
e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

tu
m

n
 2

0
1

6
. 

T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

re
: 

• 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 G
re

e
n

 L
in

k
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
S

h
e

a
f 

V
a

lle
y
 P

a
rk

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 S

h
re

w
s
b

u
ry

 
R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 f
o

rm
e

r 
C

a
s
tl
e

 C
o

lle
g
e

 s
it
e

. 
• 

N
e

w
 s

ig
n

s
 

• 
V

ie
w

in
g
 p

la
tf

o
rm

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

f 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 s
e

c
u

ri
n
g
 v

ie
w

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 

a
n

d
 u

p
 t
h

e
 S

h
e

a
f 

V
a

lle
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
e

a
k
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

• 
N

e
w

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n
 r

o
u

te
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

lic
 r

ig
h

t 
o
f 

w
a

y
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

f 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 

 
2

0
 

 
W

a
iv

e
r 

to
 a

p
p

o
in

t 
K

ie
r 

L
iv

in
g

 

Page 142Page 66



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

m
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 N

e
w

 H
o

m
e

s
 B

o
n

u
s
. 

M
a

n
o

r 
T

o
p

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

  
 T

h
e

 M
a
n

o
r 

T
o
p

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 s
e

rv
e

s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 i
n

 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

. 
T

h
e

 2
0

1
3

 L
o
c
a

lit
y
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 f

a
ili

n
g
 t

o
 o

p
ti
m

is
e

 i
ts

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 s
u

rr
o
u

n
d

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 

 
 T

h
e

 C
e
n

tr
e

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 o

c
c
u

p
a
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
to

 h
e

lp
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 i
ts

 l
o
n
g

-t
e

rm
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

. 
 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 j
u

s
t 
o

n
e
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e
 c

it
y
w

id
e

 2
0
1

5
/1

7
 S

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

it
e

s
 t
o

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 m
o

re
 p

ri
v
a

te
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 s
ti
m

u
la

te
 d

e
m

a
n

d
. 
T

h
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

M
a

n
o

r 
T

o
p
 S

h
o

p
 F

ro
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 £

2
4
0

k
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

e
e

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 N

e
w

 
H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n
u

s
. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
e

e
k
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a

 S
h
o

p
 F

ro
n
t 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
s
c
h
e

m
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 t
ri
e

d
 a

n
d

 
te

s
te

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 t
h
a

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
n

 t
w

o
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
jo

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
s
 -

 
S

p
it
a

l 
H

ill
 a

n
d

 D
a

rn
a

ll.
 A

 t
h

ir
d

 i
s
 u

n
d
e

r 
w

a
y
 o

n
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

. 
T

h
e

 l
a

rg
e

 s
c
a

le
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 
h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 a

 d
ra

m
a

ti
c
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

u
p

o
n
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

a
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
, 

ra
p

id
ly

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
ly

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
m

a
g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 b

o
o

s
ti
n

g
 c

o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

. 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e

d
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 v
a

c
a

n
t 
u

n
it
s
. 

 T
h
e

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

c
u

re
d

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

w
h

ic
h

 e
n

s
u

re
s
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
s
c
o

p
e

, 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 b
u

d
g
e

t.
 A

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 p

e
r 

s
h

o
p
 u

n
it
 i
s
 £

4
.5

k
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

e
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
a
n

 b
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
b

u
d

g
e

t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
re

 b
e

in
g
 3

4
 p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d
 a

re
a
 a

n
d

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 g
o

o
d

 v
a

lu
e
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

 A
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

rm
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

ta
te

s
 C

D
S

 
A

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

 h
a

v
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
th

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 p
re

p
a

re
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 

 
2

4
0
 

 
S

in
g
le

 s
ta

g
e

 
c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
te

n
d
e

r 

Page 143Page 67



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

T
h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
d

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
, 

u
s
in

g
 a

 s
in

g
le

-s
ta

g
e

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e

 
te

n
d
e

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

  
 

 
 

E
S

S
E

N
T

IA
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 W
O

R
K

S
 

 
 

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 E

s
s

e
n

ti
a

l 
R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
T

o
 
e

n
s
u

re
 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 
w

it
h

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 
a

n
d

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 
o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 
o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

s
ta

te
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 r

e
p

la
c
e
 f

a
ili

n
g
 o

r 
b

ro
k
e

n
 

c
o
m

p
o

n
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 

u
rg

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

s
 

to
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
d
e
fe

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 o

r 
m

a
y
 a

ri
s
e

. 
T

h
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 v

a
ri
e

d
 a

s
 w

ill
 

s
iz

e
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
v
e

rs
 s

ix
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 K

ie
r 

u
p

 t
o

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
7

, 
c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
: 

  
• 

M
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

R
e

p
la

c
in

g
 f

a
ili

n
g
 b

o
ile

rs
, 

c
h

lo
ri
fi
e

rs
, 

p
ip

e
 w

o
rk

, 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

, 
v
e

n
ti
la

ti
o
n

, 
ra

d
ia

to
rs

, 
o

il 
ta

n
k
s
, 

g
a

s
 

s
u

p
p

ly
, 

h
o

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

ld
 w

a
te

r 
s
u

p
p

ly
's

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 e
s
ta

te
. 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 2

6
0
 

p
la

n
t 

it
e

m
s
 a

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 2
5

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

. 
 

  
• 

E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

fa
ile

d
 o

r 
fa

ili
n

g
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 b

o
a

rd
, 

w
ir
in

g
, 

fi
re

 a
la

rm
s
, 

e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 l

ig
h

ti
n

g
, 

s
o

c
k
e

ts
, 

lig
h

ts
, 

s
w

it
c
h

e
s
 
e

tc
. 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

b
a

c
k
 
lo

g
 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 
o
f 

£
6
0

m
 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 

a
p

p
ro

x
. 

£
2
m

 p
e

r 
a
n

n
u
m

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 l
if
e

 c
y
c
le

 o
f 

4
0

 y
e

a
rs

 
  

• 
L

if
t 

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

R
e

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
fa

ili
n

g
, 

d
ri
v
e

s
, 

c
a

b
le

s
, 

e
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
it
e

m
s
, 

d
o
o

rs
 e

tc
. 
o

r 
a

 n
e

w
 l
if
t 

in
 t
h

e
 M

o
o

rf
o
o

t 
b

u
ild

in
g
. 

  
• 

R
o

o
fi

n
g

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

R
e

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
fu

ll 
o

r 
p

a
rt

ia
l 
ro

o
fs

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
ff

it
s
, 

fa
s
c
ia

s
, 

ra
in

 w
a

te
r 

g
o

o
d

s
. 

  
• 

W
in

d
o

w
s
 a

n
d

 D
o

o
rs

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

R
e

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
w

in
d

o
w

s
 a

n
d

 d
o
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 e
s
ta

te
. 

T
h

e
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
ti
m

b
e

r 
c
o

m
p
o

n
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

to
c
k
 h

a
v
e

 d
e
te

ri
o

ra
te

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 w

e
a

th
e

r 
d

a
m

a
g
e

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
a

n
y
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
d
e

c
o

ra
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
1

0
 y

e
a

rs
. 

  
• 

S
tr

u
c

tu
ra

l 
D

e
fe

c
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
d

e
fe

c
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 e
s
ta

te
 e

.g
. 

fa
ili

n
g
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 w
a

lls
, 

 
 

1
,8

2
5
 

K
ie

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

C
S

S
R

 
M

in
o

r 
W

o
rk

s
 

Page 144Page 68



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

ro
lli

n
g
 b

ri
c
k
 w

o
rk

, 
s
u

b
s
id

e
n

c
e
. 

 T
h
e

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 P

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 K

ie
r 

b
y
 3

1
s
t 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
7

.  
  

 A
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
lit

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 e

a
c
h

 s
o

u
rc

e
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 b
e

lo
w

: 
 

S
c

h
e

m
e

  
  
 T

o
ta

l 
  
  
  
  
  
W

o
rk

s
  
  
  
  

F
e
e

s
  
  
  
  
 C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c

y
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
 £

k
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 £

k
  
  

  
  
  
  

£
k
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 £
k
  

M
e

c
h
  

  
  
  
 1

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
9
9
1

.5
  
  
  
  
  
  
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
7

.5
 

E
le

c
  

  
  
  
  
  
 1

0
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
9

1
.5

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
.5

 
L

if
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

5
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

4
1

.5
  
  
  
  
  
 1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
7

.5
 

R
o

o
fs

  
  
  
  
  
1
7
5
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

6
6

.5
  
  
  
  
  
 1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 7

.5
 

W
in

/D
rs

  
  
  
  

2
7
5
  
  
  
  
  
  
2

6
6

.5
  
  
  
  
  
  
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
7

.5
 

S
tr

u
c
t.
  
  

  
  
  

1
2
5
  
  
  
  
  
  
1
1
6

.5
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
.5

 
T

o
ta

l 
  
  
  
  
1
,8

2
5
  
  
  
  
  
1

,7
7
4

.0
  
  
  
  
  
6

.0
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
 4

5
.0

 

 S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 i

s
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
a
ilu

re
s
. 

 S
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
llo

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 

in
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

t 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 b

y
 

in
v
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 a
s
s
e

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 a
 l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

 f
u
tu

re
. 

 

 
 

 
 

S
L

IP
P

A
G

E
 /

 A
C

C
E

L
E

R
A

T
E

D
 S

P
E

N
D

:-
 

 

  
 

 

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

 t
o

 L
iv

e
 

 
 

 

O
b

s
o

le
te

 H
e
a

ti
n

g
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t
o

 f
u

n
d
 t
h

e
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 h
e

a
ti
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 w

h
e

n
 b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
s
 c

a
n
n

o
t 
b

e
 

re
p

a
ir
e

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 m

e
c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
b

e
in

g
 o

b
s
o

le
te

. 
T

h
is

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 i
s
 t
o

 s
lip

 £
3

,3
m

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 m
o

v
e

 i
t 

to
 2

0
2
0

/2
1
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 
fo

r 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
h

e
a

ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 b

e
in

g
 o

b
s
o

le
te

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 d

u
e

 
to

 t
h
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

s
ta

lli
n

g
 n

e
w

 h
e
a

ti
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

n
 a

 1
5

 y
e

a
r 

c
y
c
le

. 
T

h
is

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
a

n
d

 a
d

ju
s
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 w

o
rk

lo
a

d
. 

S
lip

p
a

g
e
 

3
,3

0
0
 

 

Page 145Page 69



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

R
e

lo
c

a
ta

b
le

 C
a

m
e
ra

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
T

h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 a
t 

b
u

s
 l
a
n

e
/b

u
s
 g

a
te

 
e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
s
it
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 b
u

s
 j
o
u

rn
e

y
 t

im
e

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
, 

w
h

ile
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
 

a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 a
n

 a
tt

e
n
d

e
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
, 
e

x
p

a
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 u
n

a
tt
e

n
d

e
d

 s
y
s
te

m
, 

a
n

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
o

ff
e
n

c
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
, 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

ju
s
t 

o
n

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
. 

 B
y
 m

a
k
in

g
 b

e
tt
e

r 
u

s
e

 o
f 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
, 

th
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 i
n

 P
a

rk
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

w
ill

 b
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
e
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

. 
  

  T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rr
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
C

T
V

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
a

c
k
 i
n

 h
o
u

s
e

. 
 T

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
it
 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 s

lip
 £

1
5
9

k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 1

6
/1

7
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 1
7

/1
8

 t
o

 
a

llo
w

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

C
C

T
V

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
-i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

. 
 

S
lip

p
a

g
e
 

1
5

9
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
ro

u
te

 w
ill

 b
e

 o
p
e

n
 

te
n

d
e

r.
  

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
o

n
e

 f
o

r 
1

7
/1

8
. 
  

 
 

 
 

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

S
 /

 F
E

A
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

S
:-

 (
N

o
te

 o
n

ly
) 

 

 
 

 

G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

 t
o

 L
iv

e
 

 
 

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

S
h

e
a

f 
V

a
ll

e
y
 R

iv
e

rs
id

e
 R

o
u

te
 F

e
a
s

ib
il

it
y

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

h
e

a
f 

V
a

lle
y
 r

iv
e

rs
id

e
 c

y
c
le

/w
a

lk
 r

o
u

te
. 

 T
h

e
 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
a

s
 t

o
 f

in
d
 a

n
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

it
h
e

r 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
n

g
 a

 r
a

m
p

 u
p

 t
o

 A
rc

h
e

r 
R

d
 f

ro
m

 M
ill

h
o

u
s
e

s
 P

a
rk

 o
r 

b
y
 w

id
e

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 M
ill

h
o

u
s
e

s
 P

a
rk

 r
iv

e
rs

id
e

 p
a

th
 t

o
 g

iv
e

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 a
n

d
 h

a
d

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 O
p

ti
o
n

s
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

c
o

s
ts

: 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 
to

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
F

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

ro
m

 1
8

k
 t
o

 2
7

k
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

9
K

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
e

d
 u

n
w

o
rk

a
b

le
 a

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 A
 p

a
th

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 M
ill

h
o

u
s
e

s
 P

a
rk

 c
a

n
n
o

t 
b
e

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fl
o

o
d
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 

C
P

G
 -

 
F

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 
9

 
N

/A
 

Page 146Page 70



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

w
o

rk
s
. 

 A
 r

a
m

p
 u

p
 t
o

 A
rc

h
e

r 
R

o
a

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 p
a

rk
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

 W
a

te
r 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

h
e

re
. 

N
e

w
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
g
ra

d
in

g
 a

 p
a

th
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 H
u

tc
lif

fe
 W

o
o
d
 a

n
d
 a

 c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

 s
h

o
rt

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
th

 i
n

 M
ill

h
o

u
s
e

s
 P

a
rk

. 
 

 T
h
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

t 
N

o
v
1

5
 G

P
2

L
 b

o
a

rd
. 

 T
h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 g
iv

e
s
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll 
a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

f 
£

2
7
4

K
. 

 T
h

e
 e

x
a

c
t 

a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

s
1

0
6

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
s
 £

2
7
3

,9
3

0
 (

n
o

. 
6

5
0

-0
6

/0
2

2
6
0

/F
U

L
).

  
T

h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
9

k
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 

P
A

R
K

S
 

G
re

e
n

h
il
l 

P
a

rk
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a

s
 i
n

it
ia

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 F
ri
e

n
d

s
 o

f 
G

re
e

n
h

ill
 P

a
rk

, 
w

h
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
a
rk

. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 r
a

is
e

d
 f
u
n

d
s
 t
o

 i
n

v
e

s
t 

in
 t
h

e
 p

la
y
g
ro

u
n

d
. 

In
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 

2
0

1
6

 P
&

C
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 t
h

e
 F

ri
e

n
d

s
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

. 
T

h
e

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a

s
 c

h
o

s
e

n
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h
e

 i
n
s
ta

lm
e
n

t 
o
f 

a
 z

ip
 w

ir
e

, 
b

a
s
k
e

t 
s
w

in
g
 a

n
d

 c
lim

b
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
; 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 p
la

y
 s

u
rf

a
c
in

g
, 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 c
o

s
te

d
 a

t 
£

2
7

,5
9

4
 

 T
h

is
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 i
s
 f
o

r 
a

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

£
3

,8
9

7
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
o

ta
l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

s
t 

to
 £

3
1

,4
9

1
. 
 T

h
e
 e

x
tr

a
 £

3
,8

9
7

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
. 

 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

s
ts

 a
re

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

ft
e

r 
it
 w

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 F

ri
e

n
d
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

c
o

rr
e

c
t 
s
u

rf
a

c
in

g
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
. 

D
ir
e

c
to

r’
s
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

4
 

3
 Q

u
o

te
s
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

in
g
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 U

K
 

 

Page 147Page 71



 

Page 148Page 72



C
a

p
it

a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.2
 

 
  

G
ra

n
t 

A
w

a
rd

in
g

 
B

o
d

y
 

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
G

ra
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t 

to
 b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
G

ra
n

t 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

 a
n

d
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s

 
V

a
lu

e
 

£
0

0
0
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 
C

o
m

b
in

e
d

 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

O
ly

m
p

ic
 L

e
g
a

c
y
 

P
a

rk
  

O
ly

m
p

ic
 L

e
g
a

c
y
 

P
a

rk
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

W
o
rk

s
 

T
h
e

 g
ra

n
t 
o
ff

e
rs

 a
 £

4
.9

m
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 

9
.6

H
a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
d

 s
it
e

 w
it
h

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 u

ti
lit

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e

g
a

c
y
 P

a
rk

 
(O

L
P

).
 T

o
ta

l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

to
 £

9
.1

1
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

is
 t

o
 b

e
/h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 g
ra

n
t,

 p
u

b
lic

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
(S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 E

u
ro

p
e

a
n

 U
n

io
n

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
F

u
n

d
) 

£
2
.7

m
 a

n
d

 p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
£

1
.5

m
. 

 
 T

h
e

 g
ra

n
t 

c
a

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 T

e
rm

s
 &

 C
o

n
d
it
io

n
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 G
ra

n
t 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
c
la

w
b

a
c
k
 

if
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 
u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

  
 T

h
e

 g
ra

n
t 

is
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tp
u

ts
. 

 O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
 a

s
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 6

4
5

 n
e

t 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 £
1

3
7

.9
m

 t
o

ta
l 
G

ro
s
s
 V

a
lu

e
 A

d
d
e

d
. 
 I
f 

p
ro

je
c
t 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t

h
e
 g

ra
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

la
w

e
d

 b
a

c
k
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 u
n
d

e
r 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t.

 
 O

u
tp

u
ts

 a
re

 d
e
fi
n

e
d

 a
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

la
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
d

 a
re

a
s
 u

p
 

to
 b

u
ild

in
g
 p

lo
ts

, 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 p

o
in

ts
 f
o

r 
w

a
te

r,
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
, 

d
ra

in
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 t
ra

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 c

a
p

a
c
it
ie

s
. 

 

4
,8

9
9
 

Page 149Page 73



C
a

p
it

a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

.2
 

 
  

G
a

s
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
h

e
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
. 

If
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
u

tp
u

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

re
p

a
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
re

 g
ra

n
t 
p

a
id

 t
o

 i
t,

 i
rr

e
s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 o
u

tp
u
t 

n
o

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 W
o
rk

s
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 m

u
s
t 
b
e

 c
la

im
e

d
 

b
y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

7
. 

 Q
u
a

lif
y
in

g
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 
d

e
fr

a
y
e

d
. 

 R
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ra
n

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 w

it
h

h
e

ld
 

u
n

ti
l 
th

e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
u

tp
u

ts
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 f
u

lly
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

G
ra

n
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

w
h

ic
h

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 a
u

d
it
e
d

 b
y
 i
ts

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a
u

d
it
o

r.
 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

e
d
 f
o

r 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 i
n

 a
ll 

Q
u

a
lif

y
in

g
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
, 
a

s
 t
h

e
 f

u
n
d

e
r 

is
 

o
n

ly
 l
ia

b
le

 t
o

 p
a

y
 s

o
 m

u
c
h

 (
if
 a

n
y
) 

w
h

ic
h

, 
in

 t
h
e

 f
u
n
d
e
rs
’ 

o
p

in
io

n
, 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
ly

 b
e

e
n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

m
u

s
t 

e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
, 

s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 

a
re

a
 a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

o
 a

 r
e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 f
o

r 
1

5
 y

e
a

rs
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

o
rk

s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 f
u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 t

o
 O

L
P

 
u

s
e

rs
. 

 T
h
e

 g
ra

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 d
a
te

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
2

7
. 

  

Page 150Page 74



 

 1 

 
 
 

 
Report of: Policy & Improvement Officer     
 

 
Subject: WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 
 

 
Author of Report: Alice Nicholson, Policy and Improvement Officer 

alice.nicholson@sheffield.gov.uk  
0114 273 5065 

 

 

The current Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee work programme 
is attached at appendix 1 for the Committee’s consideration and discussion. 
 
The work programme contains a number of items and scheduled Committee 
dates. The work programme ideally should aim to focus on a small number of 
issues in depth. This means that the Committee may need to prioritise which 
issues will be included on formal meeting agendas. In doing this, the 
Committee can reflect on the prioritisation principles attached at appendix 2 to 
ensure that scrutiny activity is focussed where it can add most value. 
 
Where an issue is not appropriate for inclusion on a meeting agenda, but there 
is significant interest from members, the Committee can request written 
briefings or presentations outside of formal scrutiny meeting time. 
 

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
 

• Comment on the proposed work programme 

• Identify priorities for inclusion on agendas 

• Identify items for written briefings 
 
 

 
 
Category of Report: OPEN

Report to Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Committee  

10
th
 November 2016 

Agenda Item 9

Page 75



 

 2

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 

Draft work programme 2016/17  
 

Last updated: 1st November 2016 

 Please note: the draft work programme is a live document and so is subject to change. 

Topic Reasons for selecting topic Lead Officer/s Agenda 
item/Briefing 

paper 

    

    

How Sheffield City Council wants 
to do business 

This piece of work looks at the Council’s 
procurement policies and supporting 
processes on engaging, procuring and 
managing relationships with its suppliers.  
 
The Committee previously considered a report 
on this topic in November 2015. 

Marianne Betts, Director of Finance & 
Commercial Services (Interim) 
 
Cllr Ben Curran, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources  

one-off agenda 
item 

Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme Monitoring 2016/17 
Month 3 as at 30/6/16 (K) 

The report provides the Month 3 monitoring 
statement on the City Council's Revenue 
Budget and Capital Programme for 2016/17. 
Previously the Committee have asked that 
budget monitoring be included in their work 
programme to support their consideration of 
the Council’s annual budget proposal in 
February each year. 

Mike Thomas, Resources 
 
Cllr Ben Curran, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources  

Agenda item 

Appendix 1

  

P
age 76



 

 3

Work Programme 2016/17 To consider and discuss the committee’s work 
programme for 2016/17. 

Diane Owens, Policy & Improvement 
Officer 
 
Alice Nicholson, Policy & Improvement 
Officer 

Standard 
agenda Item 

Issues to raise from other 
Scrutiny Committees 

To receive any updates from scrutiny chairs.  Scrutiny Chairs Standard 
agenda Item 

Thursday 1st December 2016    Diane   

Customer Experience 
Programme 

The Customer Experience Programme focuses 
on improving all of our customer contact and 
improving customer service across our 
organisation as a whole. 

Tina Keyworth, Business Change 
Practice Manager 
 
Sue Palfreyman, Head of Customer 
Services 
 
Julie Toner, Director of Human 
Resources - tbc 
 

Agenda item 

Performance Update (Quarter 
1/2) 

Following a report in July the Committee will 
receive a further update on Council 
performance depending on timescales this will 
be for quarter 1 or 2.  

James Henderson,  Director of Policy, 
Performance and Communications 
 
Andrew Walshaw, Performance & 
Research Manager 

Agenda item 

Draft Work Programme 2016-17 To consider and discuss the committee’s work 
programme for 2016/17. 

Diane Owens, Policy & Improvement 
Officer 

Standard 
agenda Item 

Issues to raise from other 
Scrutiny Committees 

To receive any updates from scrutiny chairs.  Scrutiny Chairs Standard 
agenda Item 

P
age 77



 

 4

Briefing Paper  
Sheffield City Region Devolution 
Update  

To provide an update on Sheffield City Region 
Devolution, specifically following the public 
consultation that is currently being undertaken 
regarding the governance review.  

Laurie Brennan, Acting Head of Policy & 
Improvement 

Briefing paper 

23rd February 2017   Alice   

Budget proposal To consider the Council’s budget proposal in 
advance of Cabinet.  

Eugene Walker, Acting Executive 
Director of Resources 
 
Other attendees tbc. 

Single Agenda 
Item 

Draft Work Programme 2016-17 To consider and discuss the committee’s work 
programme for 2016/17. 

Diane Owens, Policy & Improvement 
Officer 
 
Alice Nicholson, Policy & Improvement 
Officer 

Agenda Item 

Issues to raise from other 
Scrutiny Committees 

To receive any updates from scrutiny chairs.  Scrutiny Chairs Standard 
agenda Item 

Briefing Paper  
Sheffield City Region Devolution 
Update  

To provide an update on Sheffield City Region 
Devolution. 

Laurie Brennan, Policy & Improvement 
Officer 

Standard 
agenda Item 

Briefing Paper 
Public feedback on Scrutiny  

An overview of feedback given via the public 
feedback forms 

Diane Owens, Policy & Improvement 
Officer 
 
Alice Nicholson, Policy & Improvement 
Officer 

Briefing Paper 

Possible Topics       

        

P
age 78



 

 5 

Selecting Scrutiny topics 
 

This tool is designed to assist the Scrutiny Committees focus on the topics most 

appropriate for their scrutiny. 

 

• Public Interest 
The concerns of local people should influence the issues chosen for scrutiny; 

• Ability to Change / Impact 

Priority should be given to issues that the Committee can realistically have an 

impact on, and that will influence decision makers; 

• Performance 

Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council, and other 

organisations (public or private) are not performing well;  

• Extent 
Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all or large parts of the city 

(geographical or communities of interest); 

• Replication / other approaches  

Work programmes must take account of what else is happening (or has 

happened) in the areas being considered to avoid duplication or wasted effort.  

Alternatively, could another body, agency, or approach (e.g. briefing paper) more 

appropriately deal with the topic 

 

Other influencing factors 

  

• Cross-party - There is the potential to reach cross-party agreement on a report 
and recommendations. 
 

• Resources. Members with the Policy & Improvement Officer can complete the 
work needed in a reasonable time to achieve the required outcome 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 How Sheffield City Council Wants to do Business - Ethical Procurement
	8 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2016/17 - As at 31st August, 2016 (Month 5)
	Budget Monitoring month 5

	9 Draft Work Programme 2016/17

